
 

 

 

Date: September 08, 2025 

 

To 

BSE Limited 

Department of Corporate Services/ 

Corporate Relationship Department 

PJ Towers, Dalal Street, 

Mumbai – 400 001 

Maharashtra, India 

 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

 

Scrip Code: 531191 

 

Sub: Annual Report of the Company, Notice convening 43rd Annual General Meeting 

(“AGM”). 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), please find 

enclosed Notice convening the 43rd AGM and the Annual Report of the Company for 

Financial Year 2024-25. The Annual Report contains the information to be given and 

disclosures required to be made in terms of Regulation 34(2) and 34(3) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations. 

 

Kindly take the same on record. 

 

For Filtron Engineers Ltd 

 

 

 

 

 

Ramesh Hosmane 

CFO   
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Notice is hereby given that the 43rd Annual General Meeting of Filtron Engineers Limited will be held 

on Tuesday, September 30, 2025, at 01.30 p.m. At 6, Sitabag Colony, Sinhagad Road, Pune – 411030. 

Maharashtra, India to transact the following business: 

 

Ordinary Business: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ending March 31, 2025, together with the Report of the Board of Directors and 

the Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a director, in place of Mr. Gajanan Chidambar Hegde (DIN: 00195154), who retires 

by rotation, and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

Special Business: 

 

3. Appointment of Ms. Saloni Sonkar (DIN: 11238725) as an Independent Director of the 

Company 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as Special Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152, 160 and other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read along with the companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and applicable regulation(s) of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulation’) 

(including any statutory modification(s) or any amendment(s) thereto or any substitution(s) or 

any re-enactment(s) made thereof, for the time being in force),  and in terms of recommendation 

of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, 

Ms. Saloni Sonkar (DIN: 11238725), who was appointed as Additional Independent Director 

of the Company by the Board of Directors pursuant to section 161 of the companies Act, 2013 

and, in respect of whom the company has received a notice in writing from a Member 

proposing her candidature of Independent Director, be and is hereby appointed as an 

Independent Director (Woman Director) of the Company for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive 

years with effect from August 12, 2025, up to August 11, 2030, and shall not be liable to retire 

by rotation. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 197, and other 
applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, Ms. Saloni Sonkar (DIN: 
11238725) shall be entitled to receive such fees and remuneration including by way of 
commission not exceeding in the aggregate 1% per annum of the net profits of the Company 
for each Financial year as permitted to be received in a capacity of Non-Executive, Independent 
Director under the Act and Listing Regulations, as recommended by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, from time to time. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby 

severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as deem necessary and to 

sign and execute all necessary documents, applications and returns for the purpose of giving 

effect to the aforesaid resolution.” 

  

https://www.zaubacorp.com/GAJANAN-CHIDAMBAR-HEGDE-00195154


 

 

 

4. Appointment of M/s. Pooja Gala & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary as the 

Secretarial Auditor of the company for a period of one term of five years from 1st April, 2025 

to 31st March, 2030 w.e.f. 1st April, 2025 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 204 and any other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A and other applicable 

provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), 

and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Director of the 

Company, M/s. Pooja Gala & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, be and is hereby 

appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the company for a term of five (5) consecutive financial 

years commencing from the conclusion of the 43rd Annual General Meeting until the conclusion 

of the 48th Annual General Meeting to be held in the financial year 2030–31, covering the audit 

period of five financial years from 2025–26 to 2029–30 on such remuneration as may be 

mutually agreed between the Board of Directors in consultation with the Secretarial Auditors 

of the Company in addition to applicable taxes, reimbursement of all out-of-pocket expenses 

as may be incurred in connection with the audit as more particularly set out in the Explanatory 

Statement annexed to this Notice. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 

authorized to sign and execute all applications, documents, writings and filling of requisites 

forms that may be required on behalf of the Company and generally to do all acts, deeds and 

things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect 

this resolution.” 

 

By Order and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Filtron Engineers Limited 

Sd/- 

Sadanand Hegde 

Whole-time Director 

DIN: 00195106 

Place: Pune 

Date: 08/09/2025 

NOTES:  
i. A member of the company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is 

entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/ herself and the proxy 
need not be a member of the company.  

ii. Members/proxies should bring duly attendance slip sent herewith to attend the meeting. 
iii. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the 

order of names will be entitled to vote at the meeting. 
iv. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, 

maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection 
by the members at the Annual General Meeting. 

v. Information regarding appointment/ re-appointment of Director(s) and Explanatory 
Statement in respect of special businesses to be transacted pursuant to Section 102 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and/ or Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard II is annexed hereto. 

vi. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 



 

 

(as amended), the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Company is providing facility of 
remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For 
this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with CDSL for facilitating 
voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by 
a member using remote e-Voting system will be provided by CDSL. 

vii. Electronic dispatch of Notice and Annual Report in accordance with the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) vide General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and 
subsequent circulars issued in this regard and the latest one being General Circular No. 
09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’), Circulars 
issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India with the latest one being October 03, 2024 
(‘SEBI Circulars‘), the Financial Statements (including Board’s Report, Auditors’ Report or 
other documents required to be attached therewith) for the Financial Year ended March 31, 
2025 pursuant to Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Notice calling the AGM 
pursuant to section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rules framed thereunder, 
such statements including the Notice of AGM are being sent only in electronic mode to 
those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ RTA or the 
Depository Participant(s). The physical copies of such statements and Notice of AGM will 
be dispatched only to those shareholders who request for the same. 

viii. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the 
Meeting are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution in terms of 
Section 113 of the Act, together with their specimen signatures authorizing their 
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting, to the Company’s 
Registrar and Transfer Agent 

ix. Aparna Tripathi, Practicing Company Secretaries, have been appointed as the Scrutinizer 
to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

x. The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the Cut-off date i.e. Tuesday, September 23, 2025. 

xi. The Register of members and share transfer books of the Company will be closed from 
Wednesday, September 24, 2025 to Tuesday, September 30, 2025 (both days inclusive) 
Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of 
Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the Cut-off date i.e. Tuesday, 
September 23, 2025, shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as e-
voting system on the date of the AGM. Any recipient of the Notice, who has no voting 
rights as on the Cut-off date i.e September 23, 2025, shall treat this Notice as intimation 
only. 

xii. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes cast 
at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the 
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall not 
make later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM or two working days from the 
conclusion of the AGM, whichever is earlier, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total 
votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in 
writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

xiii. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website 
of the Company, viz www.filtronindia.com and on the website of CDSL (agency for 
providing the Remote e-Voting facility for the AGM/EGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com. 
The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited, Mumbai. 

xiv. Members seeking clarifications on the Annual Report are requested to send in written 
queries to the Company at least one week before the date of the meeting. This would enable 
the Company to compile the information and provide the replies at the Meeting. 

xv. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and 
notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. 
Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic 
statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and 
holdings should be verified 

xvi. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD/P/CIR/2025/97 dated 
July 2, 2025, the Company wishes to inform shareholders that a Special Window has been 
opened for re-lodgement of physical transfer requests that were originally lodged on or 
before March 31, 2019, and were subsequently rejected or returned due to deciencies. This 

http://www.filtronindia.com/


 

 

window will remain open from July 7, 2025, to January 6, 2026. Eligible shareholders are 
encouraged to avail this one-time facility within the stipulated period. For any queries or 
assistance, shareholders may contact the Company at info@filtronindia.com or the 
Registrar and Transfer Agent at support@purvashare.com. 

   

i. Permanent Account Number (PAN) 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of PAN by 
every participant in securities market. Members are requested to submit their PAN to their DPs 
Members are requested to inform change in address or Bank mandate to their respective DPs 
with whom they are maintaining their DEMAT accounts and with the R & T Agent. 

ii. In case members wish to ask for any information about accounts and operations of the Company, 
they are requested to send their queries in writing at least 7 days in advance of the date of the 
meeting so that the information can be made available at the time of the meeting. 

iii. Members are requested to register their changed addresses/email addresses with the concerned 
DPs for holding shares in dematerialized form. Members are requested to immediately inform 
about their change of address, change of e-mail address, if any, to the Company’s Share Transfer 
Agent. Please note that as per the MCA Circulars the Company will be sending copies of Annual 
Reports in soft form only hence it is requested to intimate the changed e-mail addresses as early 
as possible to the Company’s Share Transfer Agent. 

iv. Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 available on Company’s website 
and on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. 
www.evotingindia.com as well as on the website of the RTA at www.purvashare.com. 

v. Those shareholders who have not registered their email address with the Company or wish to 
update a fresh email address may do so by contacting the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the 
Company at http://www.purvashare.com/email-and-phone-updation/ and request the RTA 
by consenting to send the Annual Report and other documents in electronic form at the said e-
mail address.  
 
The Notice along with the Annual Report will also be available on the Company’s website, viz., 

www.filtronindia.com 

 

vi. The instructions of shareholders for remote e-voting AGM are as under: 

(i) The voting period begins on September 26, 2025 at 9.00 am and ends on September 29, 
2025 at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off September 23, 2025 may cast 
their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter.  

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to 
vote at the meeting venue. 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, 
under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote 
e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it 
has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail 
shareholders is at a negligible level.  
 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility 
to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance 
of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing 
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without 
any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and 
click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

mailto:support@purvashare.com
http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.purvashare.com/
http://secure-web.cisco.com/1ZTwfmIvX5EnFxbJF64KcVqpRQuw7No0w-TZ13nZfkmPREEdXXS8Zpy6eMzbyMA11PRu9oVP7Xbh15w8y_IwvlO3gzl7K6ddguWAb2oL08NfwY6zBgJ-7GCp5COTYpVD0lHqIQbSqPhwYT58bSP_yMe-nqtdeAlioP-vMPVmpXuab2_2etdgc_2gowP4imJInJWLNW_rXu5kLDYHIHgb0UXjHrXS5ue4PDScijjygKNagrRORHzGxhR-khytlFXPaHS0DAKTdv7tQNT03kSqEFibkbZ9fq5WFtUFwn4ELv1YJXLRaI-9l6YcJI10-r_CvzNlWl1_qYumTnsUQbK5aNUQBICJj4LVDRUEs5rCgjBfaAf0gkStbDw9lZPc05efzTS2QQ0IJEVQmP7Ki5uYmoEbICqw-xsBkGbSP-cS3T_EN4Lb7BHk2YX3ubvwnrWf6hgCoYdAxUqehNplBpaIYo1PDM_zlLIFdg2w8MSTlgz8/http%3A%2F%2Fwww.purvashare.com%2Femail-and-phone-updation%2F
http://www.filtronindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/


 

 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, 
it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single 
login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository 
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to 
register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also 
enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.  

 

Demat mode 
with CDSL 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for 
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of 
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links 
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 
providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on  www.cdslindia.com home 
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be 
able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website 

of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com 

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is 

launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 

‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 

Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. 

Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will 

be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 

the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 

to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 

Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 

authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will 

be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After 

Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting 

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


 

 

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 
2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 
 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 

23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 
990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 

(v) Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than individual shareholders holding 
in Demat form & physical shareholders. 

 
1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
3) Now enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered 

with the Company. 
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 

voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  
6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and 
Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 
 

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 
number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 
Bank 
Details 
 OR Date of 
Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 
recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, 
please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details 
field as mentioned in instruction (v). 

 

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
 

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company 
selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/


 

 

‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by 
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are 
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is 
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. 

 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting 
on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 
 

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same 
the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES 
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution. 

 

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 
 

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else 
to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote. 

 

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 
Voting page. 

 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the 
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by 
the system. 

 

(xvi) Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –Remote Voting 
 

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” 
module. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login 
and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish 
to vote on. 

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued 
in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the 
scrutinizer to verify the same. 

• Alternatively, Non-Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board 
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the 
email address viz; info@filtronindia.com (designated email address by company), if they have 
voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer 
to verify the same.  

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 
 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


 

 

(i) Members who do not have access to remote e-voting facility may send duly completed Ballot 
Form (enclosed with the Notice) so as to reach the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors 
of the Company, at the Registered Office of the Company. Ballot Forms deposited in person or 
sent by post or courier at the expenses of the Member will also be accepted. Ballot from received 
after this date will be treated as invalid. 

(ii) The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members 

attending the AGM who have not cast their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their 

right at the meeting through ballot paper. 

(iii) A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-voting or by ballot. If a Member 

cast votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and ballot shall be 

treated as invalid. 

 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/ MOBILE NO. ARE NOT 
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

 
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned 
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
Company/RTA email id. 

 
2. For Demat shareholders -, please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 
Depository Participant (DP)  
 
3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 
respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual 
meetings through Depository. 

 
If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, 
you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-
23058542/43. 
 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. 

Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, 

Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 

or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43 

 

  

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

 
Item No. 3 
 

The Board of Directors (based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee) had appointed Ms. Saloni Sonkar (DIN: 11238725), as an Additional Director, in the 
category of Non-Executive Independent Women Director of the Company for a term of 5 (Five) 
consecutive years with effect from August 12, 2025. In terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, Ms. Saloni Sonkar holds office as an Additional Director only up to the date of the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 
 
The Company has received declaration from her that, she meets the criteria of Independence as 
prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations. She has 
confirmed that he is neither disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 
of the Act nor debarred from holding office as a Director of the company, by virtue of any SEBI 
Order or any other such authority and has given her consent to act as a Director. The Board of 
Directors has taken on record the declaration and confirmation submitted by her. 
 

Further, she has confirmed that she is not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or 
may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact her ability to discharge her duties as an 
Independent Director of the Company.  

 
Further, Ms. Saloni Sonkar shall be entitled to receive such fees and remuneration including by way 
of commission not exceeding in aggregate 1% per annum of the net profits of the Company for each 
Financial year as permitted under the Act and Listing Regulations and the quantum, proportion, 
manner of such payment and distribution shall be as recommended by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, from time to time. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Saloni Sonkar possesses appropriate skills, experience and 
knowledge and fulfils the conditions for appointment as an Independent Director of the Company 
as specified in the Act and Rules thereunder and the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 
None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, are interested or 
concerned in the resolution. 

 
The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 03 of the accompanying Notice 
in the interests of the Company 

 
Item No. 4 

 
Pursuant to the amendments introduced under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all listed companies are required to appoint a Peer Reviewed 
Practicing Company Secretary/ Firm of Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditor for a 
minimum continuous period of five years, with effect from the financial year 2025–26. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has 

considered and approved the appointment of M/s. Pooja Gala & Associates, Practicing Company 

Secretary, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of five consecutive financial years 

commencing from FY 2025–26 to FY 2029–30, subject to the approval of the Members. 

 

The details required to be disclosed under provisions of Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as under: 

Sr. 

No. 
Particulars Details 

1 
Proposed Secretarial 

Auditor 

M/s. Pooja Gala & Associates, Practicing Company 

Secretary 



 

 

2 Basis of Recommendation 

After evaluating all proposals and considering various 

factors such as independence, industry experience, technical 

skills, geographical presence, audit team, audit quality 

reports, etc., M/s. Pooja Gala & Associates has been 

recommended to be appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of 

the Company. The Company has received written consent 

from M/s. Pooja Gala & Associates and a certificate that they 

satisfy the qualification criteria provided under SEBI 

Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/ 

CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) 

and that the appointment, if made, shall be in accordance 

with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules framed 

thereunder, SEBI Listing Regulations, SEBI Circular and 

other applicable circulars, if any, in this regard. The firm has 

agreed to the said appointment, and confirmed that their 

appointment, if made, would be within the limits specified 

under the Act. They have further confirmed that they are 

eligible for the proposed appointment as Secretarial Auditor 

of the Company and have not incurred any of the 

disqualifications as specified vide the said SEBI Circular.  

 

While recommending M/s. Pooja Gala & Associates for 

appointment, the Board and the Audit Committee evaluated 

various factors, including the firm’s capability to handle a 

diverse and complex business environment, its existing 

experience in the Company’s business segments, its industry 

standing, and its technical expertise. M/s. Pooja Gala & 

Associates was found to be well-equipped to manage the 

scale, diversity, and complexity associated with the 

Secretarial Audit of the Company 

3 
Credentials of Proposed 

Secretarial Auditor 

M/s. Pooja Gala & Associates is a Peer Reviewed Firm of 

Company Secretaries based in Thane, with extensive 

experience in the field of Company Law, Capital Market, 

SEBI Compliances, NBFC Compliances and MCA 

Compliances. She has handled takeover, merger, reduction 

of capital, public issue of Listed Company and NBFC 

4 Term of Appointment 

For a period of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from 

the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the 

conclusion of the 48th Annual General Meeting of the 

Company to be held for the financial year ended 31st March, 

2030. 

5 Proposed Fees 

₹1.25 Lakhs (excluding tax and reimbursement of out-of-

pocket expenses) for FY 2025-26. The authority to decide the 

remuneration for the balance period of the tenure has been 

delegated to the Board of Directors which shall be decided 

mutually by them and the secretarial auditor. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

The Board, recommends passing of this Ordinary Resolutions as set out at Item No. 04 of this 

Notice, for your approval. 

 

None of the Directors and/ or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their respective 
relatives are concerned or interested either directly or indirectly, except to the extent of their 
respective shareholding in the Company, if any, in the Resolution mentioned at Item No. 4 of the 
Notice. 
 

By Order and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Filtron Engineers Limited 

Sd/- 

Sadanand Hegde 

Whole-time Director 

DIN: 00195106 

 

Place: Pune 

Date: 08/09/2025 

  



 

 

Additional Disclosures/Information/Brief Resume pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and applicable provisions of Secretarial 

Standards – 2 

 

Name of Director Mr. Gajanan Chidambar Hegde Ms. Saloni Sonkar 

DIN 00195154 11238725 

Age/ Date of Birth 28/09/1947 11/01/1996 

Date of first appointment on 

the Board 
November 11, 2022 August 12, 2025 

Category Non-Executive Director 
Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

Qualification BSc. 
BSC, MBA and Diploma in 

Optomerty 

Nature of expertise in specific 

functional areas and 

Experience 

30 years in Industrial 

Management 

More than 4 years of experience 

in varied fields such as Digital 

Marketing, Strategic selling, etc 

Terms and Condition of 

Appointment & Last 

Remuneration including 

Sitting Fees 

There is no change in terms and 

condition of the re-appointment 

and the remuneration sought to be 

paid. 

As per the resolution set out in 

this Notice read with the 

Explanatory Statement thereto 

Number of shares held in the 

Company 
Nil Nil 

Remuneration sought to be 

paid 
Nil Nil 

Directorships held in other 

companies including the 

Company as on the date of the 

Notice 

1. Schmidt Bretten (India) 

Private Limited 

2. Real Centrifuges Asia Private 

Limited 

3. Filtron Engineers Limited 

1. Filtron Engineers Limited 

Listed entities from which the 

person has resigned in the 

past three years 

Nil Nil 

Membership/ Chairmanship 

of Committees of other Boards 

as on date of the Notice 

Nil Nil 

Relationship with other 

Director, Manager and other 

Key Managerial Personnel of 

the Company 

Common Directorship in Other 

Company with Mr. Sadanand 

Hegde 

No Relation 

Board Meeting attended (F.Y. 

2024-25) 
6 Not Applicable 

Others Information 

The Director being re- appointed 

is not debarred from holding the 

office of director by virtue of any 

SEBI order or any other such 

authority. 

The Director being appointed is 

not debarred from holding the 

office of director by virtue of any 

SEBI order or any other such 

authority. 

 



 

 

Route Map 

Land Mark: Parvati Water Works 

 

 

  



 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

43rd Annual General Meeting 

Filtron Engineers Limited 

DP ID No. & Client ID No. / Folio No. 

 

Name and Address of the Shareholder in 

Block Letters. 

 

Name of Joint Holder(s), if any. 

 

No. of Shares held. 
 

Name of Proxy (if any) in Block Letters. 

 

I certify that I am a member/proxy of the Company. 

 

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 43rd Annual General Meeting of Filtron 

Engineers Limited will be held on Tuesday, September 30, 2025, at 01.30 p.m. At 6, Sitabag 

Colony, Sinhagad Road, Pune – 411030. Maharashtra, India and/or any adjournment 

thereof. 

 

 

         _______________________  

Member’s/ Proxy’s Signature. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note:  Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Hall. 

 

 

 

  



 

 

FORM NO MGT-11 

PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

Name of the member(s): 

 

Email ID 

 

Registered Address: 
Folio No. /Client ID: 

DP Id: 

 
I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint 

 

1.  Name:............................................................................................................................................. 

 

Address:............................................................................................................................................ 

E-mail Id:............................................................................................. Signature: 

....................................................... or failing him. 

 
2.  Name:................................................................................................................................................. 

 

Address:............................................................................................................................................. 

E-mail Id:.......................................................................................... Signature: 

.......................................................  

 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 43rd Annual 

General Meeting of Filtron Engineers Limited will be held on Tuesday, September 30, 2025, at 

01.30 p.m. At 6, Sitabag Colony, Sinhagad Road, Pune – 411030. Maharashtra, India and at any 

adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

 

Resolution 
No. 

Description of Resolution 
Vote* 

For Against 

Ordinary Business 
 
 
 
 

1 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 

Statements of the Company for the financial year ending 

March 31, 2025, together with the Report of the Board of 

Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

  

2 
To appoint a Director, in place of Mr. Gajanan Chidambar 
Hegde (DIN: 00195154), who retires by rotation, and being 
eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

  

Special Business 

3 
Appointment of Ms. Saloni Sonkar (DIN: 11238725) as an 
Independent Director of the Company 

  

4 

Appointment of M/s. Pooja Gala & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretary as the Secretarial Auditor of the 
company for a period of one term of five years from 1st 
April, 2025 to 31st March, 2030 w.e.f. 1st April, 2025  

  

 



 

 

*It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the ‘for or against’ column blank against any 

or all resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem 

appropriate. 

 

Signed this                 day of                     2025   

 

Signature of Shareholder     __________  

 

Signature of Proxy holder (s)   _____________ 

 

Note: 

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

2. The form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen signature registered with the Company. 

3. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

Rs.1/- 

Revenue 

Stamp 



 

 

BALLOT FORM 
To be returned to scrutinizer appointed by Filtron Engineers Limited (“The Company”) 

 
1. Name(s) of Member(s) 
(including joint-holders, if any) 
 
2. Registered Folio No. / 
DPID No. / Client Id No.* 
(*Applicable to Members holding shares 
In dematerialized form) 
 
3. Number of Shares Held: 
 
4. I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the Resolution(s) as specified in the Notice of Filtron 
Engineers Limited dated September 08, 2025, to be passed through Ballot for the business stated in the 
said Notice by conveying my/our assent or dissent to the said resolution in the relevant box below:  
 

Item 
No. 

 

Description 
 

Type of 
resolution 
(Ordinary/ 

Special) 

Number 
of Shares 

I/ We 
assent to 

the 
resolution 

(For) 

I/ We 
dissent to 

the 
resolution 

(For) 

1.  

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited 
Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ending March 31, 2025, 
together with the Report of the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

Ordinary 

   

2.  

To appoint a Director, in place of Mr. 
Gajanan Chidambar Hegde (DIN: 00195154), 
who retires by rotation, and being eligible 
offers himself for re-appointment. 

Ordinary 

   

3.  
Appointment of Ms. Saloni Sonkar (DIN: 
11238725) as an Independent Director of the 
Company 

Special 
   

4.  

Appointment of M/s. Pooja Gala & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary as 
the Secretarial Auditor of the company for a 
period of one term of five years from 1st 
April, 2025 to 31st March, 2030 w.e.f. 1st 
April, 2025 

Ordinary 

   

 
Place: 
Date:  
 
_____________________________ 
(Signature of Member/ Beneficial Official Owner) 
 
E mail: __________________________________  
Tel No. ______________________________________ 
 
INSTRUCTIONS 

1. Consent must be accorded by either placing a tick mark (√) in the appropriate column in the Ballot form. This Form 
should be completed and signed by the Shareholder(s) (as per the specimen signature registered/recorded with the 
Company/Depository Participants). In case of joint holding, this Form should be completed and signed by the first named 
Shareholder and in his absence, by the next named Shareholder.  

2. There will be only one Ballot Form for every folio/ Client ID irrespective of the number of joint Shareholder(s). 
3. In case of shares held by companies, trusts, societies etc. the duly completed Ballot Form should be accompanied by a 

certified true copy of Board resolution/Power of Attorney / authority letter / attested specimen signatures, etc. 
4. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of a Ballot will be final and binding. 
5. Incomplete, unsigned or incorrect Ballot Forms will be rejected.  
6. The result of the Ballot will be posted on the website of the Company. 



 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

 

Introduction: 

 

Filtron Engineers Limited, has been an established name in the process and plant industry. It 

has been providing quality equipments and turnkey systems to the Dairy, Food, Beverage and 

other processing industries. 

 

Management of the Company has figured viable opportunities for the Company to accelerate 

the business of the Company. 

 

Industry Structure and Development 

 

The wide application of process plant and its equipment will drive the growth in near future. 

The plant and equipment are engineered in different metals like stainless steel, aluminium, 

copper, mild steel and carbon steel by adopting the best manufacturing process. The process 

equipment covers the processing sector essential for producing the desired finished product. 

The process plant is reputed for design, process technology through various automated 

processing unit, quality, consistence performance and customer satisfaction. 

 

Opportunities and Threats 

 

In this emerging world, there would be many opportunities which will be available for the 

Company. 

 

The most important threat continues to be competition from low cost imported products. 

Manpower costs are rising as many large companies are mopping the available talent pool 

supply of which is limited. Thus, for small and mid-range companies, retaining high quality 

manpower is a concern. 

 

Segment wise Operational Performance 
 

The company operates in a single business/ geographical segment. Hence, segment wise 
performance is not furnished. 
 
Outlook 

 

Your Company, keeping pace with the overall market scenario is trying to bring back the 

Company in full operation.  

 

  



 

 

Risk and Concerns  

 

Our Company remains exposed to risks which could impact our operating and financial 

performance. These risks could be macro, geopolitical, environmental, health related and 

sector specific in nature.  

 

Internal Control systems and their adequacy 

 

The Company has an adequate internal financial control system commensurate with the size, 

scale and complexity of its operations. It has put in place adequate controls, procedures and 

policies for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to 

polices, safeguarding its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and 

completeness of accounting records. Appropriate frameworks have been designed to have 

internal controls over financial reporting, which ensures the integrity of financial statements 

of the Company and reduces possibility of malpractice. Design of key processes and various 

policies are reviewed periodically, from the point of view of adequacy of controls. 

 

The Board of Directors and management at all levels of the Company demonstrate through 

their directives, actions and behaviours the importance of integrity and ethical values to 

support the functioning of the system of internal control. The ‘Code of Conduct’ and the 

‘Whistle-blower/ Vigil Mechanism’ policies form an integral component of the internal 

control system. The Code of Conduct compliance is mandatory for employees and the 

Whistle-blower/ Vigil Mechanism policies enables employees and vendors to raise genuine 

concerns about any actual or suspected ethical/ legal violations or misconduct or fraud, with 

adequate safeguards against victimisation, fear of punishment or unfair treatment. 

 

Internal controls are tested for effectiveness, across all project sites and functions by the 

Internal Audit team, which is reviewed by the management for corrective action from time to 

time and deviations, if any, are reported to the Audit Committee periodically. 

 

Operational and financial performance 

 

The Company already started to revive. 

 

Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number 

of people employed.  

 

The Company recognise our industry in which we operated is a labour and employees’ 

intensive industry and key to the success of the organization and in meeting its business 

objectives. Hence, our company strives to create a quality of life for its employees. Keeping 

the spirits high at workplace needs a sound mental and physical fitness and deep-rooted 

culture which promotes work life balance. 

 

  



 

 

Key Financial Ratios: 

 

The key financial ratios for the financial year 2024-25 and comparison thereof with the 

financial year 2023-24 has been stated in the financial statement for the period ended March 

31, 2025 

 

Details of Change in Return on Networth 

 

There is no change in Return on Networth of the Company in compared to previous financial 

year. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  
Filtron Engineers Limited 
 
Sd/- 
Sadanand Ganapati Hegde 
Chairperson and Whole-time Director 
DIN: 00195106 
 

Place: Pune  
Date: September 08, 2025 
C/o:  Plot No.36, WMDC Industrial Area,  
Ambethan Road, Chakan, Pune – 410501,  
Maharashtra, India 

  



 

 

Director’s Report 
 

To  

The Members 

Filtron Engineers Limited 

 

Your Board of Directors is pleased to present 43rd Annual Report of Filtron Engineers Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) covering the business, operations and Audited 

Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

1. Financial Highlights: 

 

The standalone financial performance of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 is 

summarised below: 

(Rs. in Thousand) 

Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024 

Revenue from Operation 2500.00 00.00 

Other Income 2265.07 1,331.68 
Total Revenue 4765.07 1,331.68 

Profit/ (Loss) Before Exceptional Item (2,995.71) (3,478.92) 

Exceptional Item 0.00 0.00 
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (2,995.71) (3,478.92) 

Tax 0.00 0.00 

Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (2,995.71) (3,478.92) 

 

2. Change in the Nature of Business, If any: 

 

There has not been any change in the nature of business of the Company during the Financial 

Year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

3. Company Performance/ Review of Operation: 

 

The Company has started to operate its business and also looking for new projects. 

 

Due to the efforts of the management, the suspension of trading in the securities of the 

Company has been successfully revoked effective from January 08, 2025 vide BSE Notice No. 

20241231-4 dated December 31, 2024. 

 

4. Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures: 

 

As on March 31, 2025, according to the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under the 

Company does not have any Subsidiary Company, Associate Company and Joint Venture 

Company. Considering this, ‘Form AOC – 1’ is not applicable. 

 

  



 

 

5. Dividend: 

 

In view of the fact that the Company had ceased its business operations in the past and has 

only recommenced them during the current financial year, the Directors have decided not to 

recommend any dividend on the equity shares for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

6. Reserves: 

 

Your Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the reserves for the financial year 

2024-25. 

 

7. Share Capital: 

 

During the year under review there were no change in Share capital of the Company. 

 

8. Material changes affecting the Company: 

 

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company. There have been no 

material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between 

the end of the financial year and the date of this report other than as mentioned below: 

 

• Resignation of Ms. Nivedita Sen (DIN: 07796043), Non-Executive Independent 

Director of the Company w.e.f. July 16, 2025. 

• Appointment of Ms. Saloni Sonkar (DIN: 11238725) as Additional Non-Executive 

Independent Director of the Company for a period of 5 years w.e.f. August 12, 2025 

and thereafter as Non-Executive Independent Director subject to approval of 

shareholder’s in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.  

• The Board of Directors subject to approval of shareholders approved to increase the 

Authorised Capital of the Company from Rs. 3,50,00,000/- (Rupees Three Crores Fifty 

Lakhs Only) divided into 35,00,000 (Thirty-Five Lakhs) Equity Shares having face 

value of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 85,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighty-Five Crores Only) divided 

into 6,55,00,000 (Six Crores Fifty-Five Lakhs) Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 

10/- each and 1,95,00,000 (One Crore Ninety-Five Lakhs) Preference Shares having 

face value of Rs. 10/- each. 

• Issuance upto 4,50,00,000 Equity Shares for consideration other than cash (i.e. swap of 

shares) to non-promoters 

• Issuance upto 1,92,09,000 0.5% Non-Convertible Compulsorily Redeemable 

Preference Shares (“NCCRPS”) for consideration other than cash (i.e. swap of shares) 

to non-promoters 

• Issuance upto 1,59,00,000 Equity Shares for cash consideration to non-promoters 

• Company has received copy of Public Announcement under Regulation 3(1) and 

Regulation 4 read with Regulation 13 (2) (G), Regulation 14 and Regulation 15(1) of 

The SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 from the 

proposed Acquirers i.e. Mr. Tarak Bipinchandra Gor (Acquirer-1) and Mr. Jayesh 

Sheshmal Rawal Aacquirer-2) 

 

  



 

 

9. Deposits: 

 

The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of 

provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. Hence, the requirement of 

furnishing details relating to Deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act or the details of 

Deposits that are not in compliance with Chapter V of the Act is not applicable. 

 

10. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

a. Appointment/ Reappointment/ Cessation 

 

During the year under review, there has been following changes in the Composition of the 

Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. 

 

• Ms. Raina Ajmera, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company 

resigned w.e.f. April 25, 2024. 

• Ms. Soniya Ajmera, a member of Institute of Company Secretaries of India was 

appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. 

October 22, 2024. 

• Ms. Deepa Atul Thakkar (DIN: 01935356), Non-Executive Director of the Company 

resigned w.e.f. February 17, 2025 

• Mr. Atul Thakkar (DIN: 01935338), Non-Executive Director of the Company resigned 

w.e.f. February 17, 2025 

 

Further, there has been following changes from the end of the financial year and the date 

of this report: 

 

• Ms. Nivedita Sen (DIN: 07796043), Non-Executive Independent Director of the 

Company resigned w.e.f. July 16, 2025. 

• Ms. Saloni Sonkar (DIN: 11238725) was appointed as Additional Non-Executive 

Independent Director of the Company for a period of 5 years w.e.f. August 12, 2025. 

 

b. Director liable to retire by rotation: 

 

As per the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Gajanan Chidambar 

Hegde (DIN: 00195154) Non-Executive Director, whose office is liable to retire at the 

ensuing 43rd AGM, being eligible, seeks re-appointment. The notice convening the 43rd 

AGM to be held on September 30, 2025, annexed to the Annual report, sets out the details. 

 

c. Appointment of Ms. Saloni Sonkar (DIN: 11238725) as Non-Executive Independent 

Director of the Company 

 

Ms. Saloni Sonkar was appointed as an as Additional Director in the category of Non-

Executive Independent Director of the Company in their board meeting held on August 12, 

2025 with immediate effect subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company at the 

ensuing General Meeting. Accordingly, an appropriate resolution for her appointment as 

an Independent Director of the Company is being placed for the approval of the 

https://www.zaubacorp.com/GAJANAN-CHIDAMBAR-HEGDE-00195154


 

 

shareholders of the Company at the ensuing 43rd AGM for the period of 5 (Five) years with 

effect from August 12, 2025. The Board of Directors of the Company recommends her 

appointment as an Independent Director of the Company 

 

11. Declaration by Independent Director:  

 

The Company has received the necessary declaration from each Independent Director under 

Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence laid 

down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 along with a declaration received pursuant 

to sub-rule 3 of rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 

2014. They have also furnished the declaration pursuant to Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations affirming compliance to the criteria of Independence as provided under 

Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 

Based on the declarations and confirmations of the Independent Directors and after 

undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same, the Board of Directors recorded their 

opinion that all the Independent Directors are independent of the Management and have 

fulfilled all the conditions as specified under the governing provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 

Further, the Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the 

Company’s code of conduct. Also, the separate meeting of the Independent Directors has been 

duly convened and held.  

 

12. Statement of the Board of Directors: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that all the Independent Directors of 

the Company possess highest standard of integrity, relevant expertise and experience 

required to best serve the interest of the Company. 

 

13. Familiarisation Programme for the Independent Director: 

 

In compliance with the requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has put in 

place a Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors to familiarize them with the 

Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which 

the Company operates, business model etc. Further, at the time of the appointment of an 

independent director, the Company issues a formal letter of appointment outlining his/ her 

role, function, duties and responsibilities. Details of the Familiarization Programme 

conducted are available on the website of the Company 

https://www.filtronindia.com/details-of-familiarisation-program.htm 

 

14. Evaluation of Board Performance: 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder 

and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 2015, the Board carried out the 

annual performance evaluation of the Board of Directors as a whole, Committees of the Board 

and individual Directors.  

 



 

 

The parameters for performance evaluation of the Board include composition of the Board, 

process of appointment to the Board of Directors, common understanding of the roles and 

responsibilities of the Board members, timelines for circulating board papers, content and the 

quality of information provided to the Board, attention to the Company’s long term strategic 

issues, evaluating strategic risks, overseeing and guiding acquisitions etc. Some of the 

performance indicators for the Committees include understanding the terms of reference, 

effectiveness of discussions at the Committee meetings, information provided to the 

Committee to discharge its duties and performance of the Committee vis-à-vis its 

responsibilities.  

 

Performance of individual Directors was evaluated based on parameters such as attendance 

at the meeting(s), contribution to Board deliberations, engagement with colleagues on the 

Board, ability to guide the Company in key matters, knowledge and understanding of 

relevant areas and responsibility towards stakeholders. All the Directors were subject to self-

evaluation and peer evaluation.  

 

The performance of the Independent Directors was evaluated taking into account the above 

factors as well as independent decision-making and non-conflict of interest. Further, the 

evaluation process was based on the affirmation received from the Independent Directors that 

they met the independence criteria as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing 

Regulations, 2015.  

 

Subsequent to the evaluation done in the financial year 2024-25, some action areas have been 

identified for the Board to engage itself with. These include review of your Company’s goals, 

strategy, capability gaps, competitive landscape, technological developments, SWOT 

analysis, etc. and also a thorough review of key issues facing the Company. All these will be 

suitably dealt with by the Board. 

 

15. Board Meetings: 

 

The Board met 6 (Six) Times during the financial year at the Registered Office of the 

Company.  

 

The Board Meetings were held on May 30, 2024, August 14, 2024, September 09, 2024, October 

22, 2024, November 14, 2024, and February 14, 2025. The meeting of the Board had been 

conducted at regular interval with a time gap of not more than 120 days between two 

consecutive meetings. 

16. Board Committee: 

 

The Board currently has the following Committee: 

 

1. Audit Committee 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

3. Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

 

  



 

 

Composition of Committees 

Audit Committee 
Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee 

Stakeholder and 

Relationship Committee 

Tanaji Kadu – Chairperson Tanaji Kadu – Chairperson Tanaji Kadu – Chairperson 

*Saloni Sonkar - Member *Saloni Sonkar - Member Gajanan Hegde – Member 

**Nivedita Sen - Member **Nivedita Sen - Member 

Sadanand Hedge – Member Sadanand Ganapati Hegde - 

Member 
Gajanan Hegde - Member 

* Appointed w.e.f August 12, 2025 

** Ceased to be Member w.e.f July 16, 2025 

 

17. Nomination and Remuneration Policy: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and on the recommendation of the 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board has adopted the Nomination & 

Remuneration Policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management 

including Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their remuneration. The details of this policy 

have been placed on the website of the Company at https://www.filtronindia.com/policies-

under-companies.htm 

 

18. Management Discussion and Analysis Report: 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, giving detailed 

analysis of the Company’s operations as stipulated under Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, is presented in a separate section forming part of the Annual Report. 

 

19. Secretarial Standards: 

 

The Company has tried to comply with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the 

Institute of the Company Secretaries of India but not been complied fully. 

 

20. Related Party Transactions: 

 

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for its review and 

approval. Prior/ Omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on an annual basis 

for a financial year, for the transactions that are of foreseen and repetitive in nature. The 

statement giving details of all related party transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus 

approval together with relevant information are placed before the Audit Committee for 

review and updated on a quarterly basis.  

All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in Ordinary Course of the 

Business and at Arm’s Length basis. During the year under review, the Company has not 

entered into any contracts/ arrangements/ transactions with related parties that qualify as 

material in accordance with the Policy of the Company on materiality of related party 

transactions. Hence, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 

134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in ‘Form AOC-2’ is not applicable.  



 

 

The details of such related party transactions are available in the Notes to the Standalone 

financial statements section of this Annual Report. 

21. Internal Financial Control:  

 

The Company has designed and implemented a process-driven framework for Internal 

Financial Control (‘FC’) within the meaning of the explanation to Section 134(5)(e) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Board is of the opinion that the Company has the 

Internal Financial Control.  

 

22. Directors’ Responsibility Statement: 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time being in force), the Board of Directors of your 

Company confirms that: 

 

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have 

been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.  

 

b. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 

and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2025 and of the 

profit and loss of the company for that period. 

 

c. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 

safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities. 

 

d. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

 

e. the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company 

and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively. 

 

f. the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 

of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

23. Audit Reports and Auditors: 

 

Statutory Auditors: 

 

M/s. S.H. Sane & Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 114491 W) were appointed as Statutory 

Auditors of the Company at the AGM held on February 28, 2023 for a term of 5 (five) 

consecutive years and hold office upto the conclusion of the AGM to be held for the year 2027. 

 



 

 

The Statutory auditor’s report for the financial year 2024-25 on the financial statement on the 

Company forms a part of this Annual Report. The observations and comments, if any, are self-

explanatory and do not call for further explanation under Section 134(3)(f) of the Act. 

 

No frauds have been reported by the auditor for the financial year 2025. 

 

Secretarial Auditor and audit report: 

 

Being a publicly listed Company, the Company is required to annex a Secretarial Audit Report 

from a Company Secretary in Practice with the Board Report for the said purpose, on the 

recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Company appointed M/s. Pooja Gala & 

Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries in accordance with provisions of Section 204 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the 

financial year 2024-2025. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR -3 for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2025, is annexed herewith as an ‘Annexure–I’ to this Board’s Report. 

 

The Board has duly reviewed the Secretarial Audit Report. The observations and comments, if any, are 

self-explanatory and do not call for further explanation under Section 134(3)(f) of the Act. 

 

Further, in alignment with the amended requirements under Regulation 24A of SEBI LODR 

to the extent applicable and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the 

Board of Directors, it is proposed to appoint M/s. Pooja Gala & Associates, Practicing 

Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of five (5) 

consecutive financial years, commencing from FY 2025–26 to FY 2029–30, subject to approval 

of the Members at the ensuing General Meeting. 

 

Internal Auditor: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of Companies Act 2013, the Company had appointed 

M/s Vaishnavi Badwe & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as an Internal Auditor of the 

Company for the Financial year 2024-25. 

 

24. Significant and material orders: 

 

There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 

impacting the Company’s going concern status and/or its future operations. 

 

25. Establishment of Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy: 

 

As per the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), the Company is 

required to establish an effective Vigil Mechanism for directors and employees to report 

genuine concerns. 

 

The Company has a Whistle-blower Policy to encourage and facilitate employees to report 

concerns about unethical behavior, actual/ suspected fraud and violation of the Company’s 

Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The Policy has been suitably modified to meet the 

requirements of Vigil Mechanism under the Companies Act, 2013. The policy provides for 



 

 

adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who avail the same and provides for 

direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The policy also establishes adequate 

mechanisms to enable employees to report instances of leaks of unpublished price-sensitive 

information. The Audit Committee of the Company oversees the implementation of the 

Whistle-Blower Policy. 

 

The Company has disclosed information about the establishment of the Whistle Blower Policy 

on its website https://www.filtronindia.com/policies-and-code-of-conduct.htm  

 

During the year, no person has been declined access to the Audit Committee, wherever 

desired. 

 

26. Annual Return: 

 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, copies of the 

Annual Returns of the Company prepared in accordance with Section 92(1) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 11 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 

are placed on the website of the Company and is accessible at Company’s website at 

https://www.filtronindia.com/annual-return.htm 

 

27. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments: 

 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of 

the Act, are given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

 

28. Particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange 

Earnings and Outgo: 

 

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption, and foreign exchange 

earnings and outgo as stipulated under Sub-section (3)(m) of Section 134 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, read with the rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are enclosed as 

‘Annexure-II’ to this Board’s report. 

 

29. Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosures:  

 

In terms of compliance with provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the 

particulars of remuneration to the Directors and employees of the Company and the details 

of the ratio of remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration is 

annexed herewith as “Annexure-III” to this Boards Report. 

 

In terms of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 

employee(s) drawing remuneration in excess of limits set out in said rules forms part of this 

Boards Report in Annexure if any. 

 

  

https://www.filtronindia.com/policies-and-code-of-conduct.htm


 

 

30. Corporate Social Responsibility: 

 

The Company was not required to spend towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as 

per the applicability of provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

31. Maintenance Cost Records: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with Companies (Cost Records and 

Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company is not required to maintain 

the Cost Records. 

 

32. Non-Disqualification Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary: 

 

A certificate as required under Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations, a certificate to that effect received by M/s Pooja Gala & Associates, 

Practicing Company Secretaries as “Annexure-IV”, as on March 31, 2025, is annexed to this 

Report. 

 

33. Disclosure Regarding Prevention of Sexual Harassment: 

 

During the financial year under review, your company was not required to constitute Internal 

Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 as there are less than 10 employees in the company. 

 

34. Compliance with the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961: 

 

Pursuant to the Companies (Accounts) Second Amendment Rules, 2025, the Company affirms 

that it is in compliance with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. The Company 

remains committed to providing a safe, supportive, and inclusive work environment for 

women employees, in line with the applicable statutory requirements. 

 

35. Disclosure under Section 67(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013: 

 

No disclosure is required under section 67(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 

16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, in respect of voting rights not 

exercised directly by the employees of the Company as the provisions of the said section are 

not applicable. 

 

36. Reporting of Frauds by Auditors: 

 

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any instances of fraud committed against the 

Company by its officers or employees as specified under Section 143(12) of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

37. Risk Management: 

 

The Risk Management framework enables identification and evaluation of business risks and 

opportunities, seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on business objectives 



 

 

and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage. The Company has adopted a Risk 

Management Policy pursuant to Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013. The Company has robust 

risk management framework to safeguard to Organization from various risk through 

adequate and timely actions. The elements of risk as identified for the Company are set out in 

the Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming the part of this Annual Report.  

 

38. Other Disclosures: 

 

• There were no proceedings, either filed by or against your Company or pending under 

the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 as amended, before the National Company 

Law Tribunal or other Courts as on March 31, 2025. 

• Your Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights and sweat equity 

shares during the year under review. 

• There were no instances where your Company required the valuation for one time 

settlement or while taking the loan from the Banks or Financial institutions, during the 

financial year under review. 

 

39. Acknowledgement: 

 

Your directors would like to express their appreciation for the assistance and co-operation 

received from the financial institutions, banks, Government authorities, customers, vendors 

and members during the year under review. Your Director’s take on record their deep sense 

of appreciation to the contributions made by the employees through their hard work, 

dedication, competence, support and co-operation towards the progress of your Company. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  
Filtron Engineers Limited 
 
 
Sd/- 
Sadanand Ganapati Hegde 
Chairperson and Whole-time Director 
DIN: 00195106 
  

Place: Pune  
Date: September 08, 2025 

C/o:  Plot No.36, WMDC Industrial Area,  
Ambethan Road, Chakan, Pune – 410501,  
Maharashtra, India 

 



 

 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies  

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To 

The Members 

Filtron Engineers Limited 

CIN: L57909PN1982PLC026929 

Add: Plot No.36, WMDC Industrial Area, Ambethan Road, Chakan,  

Pune - 410501, Maharashtra, India.  

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate practices by Filtron Engineers Limited (hereinafter called as the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was 

conducted in a manner that provided me/ us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory 

compliances and expressing my Opinion thereon. Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute 

books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by 

the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby 

report that in my/ our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 

March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board 

- processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 

hereinafter:  

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Filtron 

Engineers Limited (“The Company”) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, according to the provisions 

of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under; 

 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial borrowings; - Not Applicable during 

the period of Audit 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015;  

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; - Not Applicable during the period of Audit. 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; - Not Applicable to the company during the period of 

Audit. 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008; - Not Applicable during the period of Audit. 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; - Not 
Applicable during the period of Audit 

  



 

 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; - Not 

Applicable during the period of Audit 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited. 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above to the extent applicable and there are no other specific observations 

requiring any qualification on non-compliance.: 

 

I/we further report that 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-

Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 

place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 

sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 

minutes. 

 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

We further report that during the audit period the company has done the following major events: 

 

1. Resignation of Ms. Raina Ajmera from the position of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the 

Company w.e.f. closing hours of April 25, 2024. 

 

2. Appointment M/s. Vaishnavi Badwe & Associates, Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor of the Company 

for the FY 24-25 in its meeting held on May 30, 2024. 

 

3. Appointment of Ms. Soniya Ajmera as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f. October 22, 2024. 
 

4. Appointment of M/s Pooja Gala & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditor of the 

Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2025 in its meeting held on November 14, 2024. 

 

5. Suspension in trading of equity shares of the company were revoked w.e.f. January 08, 2025 vide its Notice no 

20241231-4 dated December 31, 2024. 

 

6. Intimation regarding Resignation of Non-Executive Director - Mr. Atul Thakkar (DIN: 01935338), Non-

Executive Director of the Company and Mr. Deepa Thakkar (DIN: 01935356) Non-Executive Director of the 

Company vide their letter dated February 17, 2025 respectively received by Company on February 18, 2025. 

 

The Company has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder 
except for the following: 

- Ms. Raina Ajmera has resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f. April 25, 

2024. The Company was required to fill the vacancy not later than not later than three months from the date of 

such vacancy i.e. till July 24, 2024. However, Company has appointed the Company Secretary and Compliance 

Officer w.e.f. October 22, 2024. Hence, Company was not complied with the provisions of Regulation 6 of SEBI 



 

 

((Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the period from July 25, 2024 to 

October 21, 2024. 

 

I have relied based on undertaking and certain random checking done by me. 

 

There are no actions taken against the Company/ its Promoters/ Directors/ either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges 

(including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ 

Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, except those mentioned above. 
 

I further report that Compliance of applicable Financial Laws including direct and indirect tax Laws by the Company has 

not been reviewed in the Audit since the same has been subject to review by the statutory auditor and other designated 

professionals. 

 

For Pooja Gala & Associates 

(Practicing Company Secretary) 

 

 

SD/- 

Pooja Amit Gala 

ACS No: 69393 

COP No: 25845 

ICSI UDIN: A069393G001197916  

Peer Review Number: 5760/2024 

Date: September 08, 2025 

Place: Thane 

 

This report is to be read with the letter which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report. 

 

Disclaimer: - We have conducted the assignment by examining the secretarial records and management undertaking 

given to us by the company etc. received by way of electronic mode from the company and was randomly verified by 

us. The management has confirmed that the records submitted to us are True and Correct. This report is limited to 

statutory compliances on law / regulations / guidelines listed in our report which have been complied by the company 

pertaining to financial year 24-25. We are not commenting on the statutory compliances whose due dates are extended 

by Registrars from time to time or still there is time line to comply with such compliances. 

 

  



 

 

Annexure A’ 

 

To 

The Members 

Filtron Engineers Limited 

CIN: L57909PN1982PLC026929 

Add: Plot No.36, WMDC Industrial Area, Ambethan Road, Chakan,  

Pune - 410501, Maharashtra, India,  
 

My report is to be read along with this letter. 

  

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. I have conducted our audit by examining various records and documents including minutes, registers, 

certificates and other records physical mode from the company. I state that I have verified the physical 

original documents and records. The management has confirmed that the records provided to us for audit are 

true and correct. 

3. Further, my audit report is limited to the verification and reporting on the statutory compliances on 

laws/regulations/guidelines listed in our report and the same pertain to the financial year ended on March 

31, 2025. Our reporting does not include on statutory compliances whose dates are extended by Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs/ SEBI/ RBI, as the case may be, from time to time and accordingly such extended time 
limits remain beyond the date of our audit report. 

4. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 

that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices we followed 

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

5. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company. 

6. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc. 

7. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards are 

the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test 
basis. 

8. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

For Pooja Gala & Associates 

(Practicing Company Secretary) 

 

 

Sd/- 

Pooja Amit Gala 

ACS No: 69393 

COP No: 25845 

ICSI UDIN: A069393G001197916 

Peer Review Number: 5760/2024 

Date: September 08, 2025 

Place: Thane 



 

 

Annexure II 
 

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 READ 
WITH RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS), RULES 2014 

 
(A) Conservation of energy: 
 

Steps taken or impact on conservation 
of energy 

The Company has not taken any active steps for 
conservation of Energy nor utilizing alternate 
source of energy. 
 
However, Company do believe in conservation 
of Energy and will take requisite measure if 
requires at any point of time. 

Steps taken by the company for 
utilizing alternate sources of energy 

Capital investment on energy 
conservation equipment 

NIL 

  
   (B) Technology absorption: 
 

Efforts made towards technology 
absorption 

The Company has not made any efforts towards 
technology absorption. 

Benefits derived like product 
improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution 

NIL 

In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 
beginning of the financial year): 

• Details of technology imported  NIL 

• Year of import Not Applicable 

• Whether the technology has been fully 
absorbed 

Not Applicable 

• If not fully absorbed, areas where 
absorption has not taken place, and the 
reasons thereof 

Not Applicable 

Expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development 

The Company has not spent any amount 
towards research and developmental activities. 

 
     
  



 

 

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 
 

 1st April, 2024 to 
31st March, 2025 

[Current F.Y.] 

1st April, 2023 to 
31st March, 2024 
[Previous F.Y.] 

Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs. 

Actual Foreign Exchange earnings Nil Nil 
Actual Foreign Exchange outgo Nil Nil 

 
     
    
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  
Filtron Engineers Limited 
 
 
Sd/- 
Sadanand Ganapati Hegde 
Chairperson and Whole-time Director 
DIN: 00195106 
 
Place: Pune  
Date: September 08, 2025 

C/o:  Plot No.36, WMDC Industrial Area,  
Ambethan Road, Chakan, Pune – 410501,  
Maharashtra, India 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Annexure III 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 

a) Information as per Rule 5(1) of Chapter XIII, Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

 

(i)  Ratio of the Remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 

Company for the financial year 2024-2025: 

Amount in “Thousands” 

Name of Director Designation Ratio of the 
remuneration 

Mr. Sadanand Ganapati Hegde Whole-time Director - 

Mr. Atul Thakkar* Non-Executive Director - 

Mrs. Deepa Atul Thakkar* Non-Executive Women Director - 

Mr. Gajanan Chidambar Hegde* Non-Executive Independent Director - 

Mr. Tanaji Gunaji Kadu* Non-Executive Independent Director - 

^Ms. Nivedita Sen* 
Non-Executive Women Independent 
Director 

- 

#Ms. Saloni Sonkar* 
Non-Executive Additional Women 
Independent Director 

- 

Note: 
*Being a Non-Executive Director, no remuneration has been drawn during the year. 
^ Resigned w.e.f. July 16, 2025 
# Appointed w.e.f. August 12, 2025 
 
Assumptions – For calculation of the median, details of only those employees are considered who were 
there on 31st March, 2025 and also who are still employed/ engaged with the Company as on the date of the 
Report. 
 

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 

Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year 2024-2025 as 

compared to the previous year 2023-24:  

 

Name of Director Designation Percentage (%) 
increase in 

Remuneration  

Mr. Sadanand Ganapati Hegde Whole-time Director - 

Mr. Atul Thakkar* Non-Executive Director - 

Mrs. Deepa Atul Thakkar* Non-Executive Women Director - 

Mr. Gajanan Chidambar Hegde* Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

- 

Mr. Tanaji Gunaji Kadu* 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

- 



 

 

Ms. Nivedita Sen* 
Non-Executive Women Independent 
Director 

- 

Ms. Saloni Sonkar# 
Non-Executive Additional Women 
Independent Director 

- 

Mr. Ramesh Mrithyunjaya Hosmane Chief Financial Officer - 

Ms. Raina Ajmera** Company Secretary - 

Ms. Soniya Ajmera^ Company Secretary - 
*Since the Non-Executive Director does not receive any remuneration other than sitting fees for the meeting 
of the Board attended by them, only details of Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are 
considered. 
** Resigned w.e.f. April 25, 2024 
^ Appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f. October 22, 2024 
# Appointed w.e.f. August 12, 2025 
Assumptions – For calculation of the Percentage (%) increase in Remuneration, details of only those 
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are considered who were there for the whole financial year ended 
31st March, 2025. 
 

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: The 

percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2024-2025 is 

Nil 

 

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2025: The 

Company has 3 employees on the rolls of the Company. 

 

(v) Key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed of by the Directors: 

There is no variable component in the remuneration of the Executive Directors. The Non-

Executive Directors are not entitled to remuneration in any form other than sitting fees. 

 

(vi) Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with percentile increase in 

the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any 

exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration. 

 

Sr. No Particulars  % Increase 

1. 
Average percentile increases in the salary of employees other than 
Managerial Personnel  

- 

2. 
Average percentile increases in the salary of the managerial 
Personnel 

- 

 

(vii) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company: 

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid/payable during the year is as per the 

Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

 

  



 

 

b) Information as per Rule 5(2) of Chapter XIII, Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

 

i) Top 10 employees in terms of Remuneration drawn during the year: Details of Top Ten 

employees in terms of remuneration drawn as on March 31, 2025 will be made available for 

inspection at the registered office of the Company. Any member interested in obtaining such 

particulars may write to the Company. 

 

ii) The following details are given hereunder in respect of employees employed throughout the 

year and were in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 1.02 Crores or more per annum: 

During the year, none of the employees was in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 1.02 

Crores or more per annum. 

 

iii) The following details are given hereunder in respect of employees employed for a part of the 

financial year and were in receipt of remuneration at a rate aggregating Rs. 8.50 Lakhs or more 

per month: During the part of the year, none of the employees was in receipt of remuneration 

aggregating Rs. 8.50 Lakhs or more per month. 

 

iv) The following details are given hereunder in respect of employees employed throughout the 

year or part thereof and were receipt of remuneration which is in aggregate was in excess of 

that drawn by the Managing Director or Whole-time Director and who held by himself or 

along with his spouse or dependent children 2% or more of the Equity Shares of the Company:  

 

None of the Employees of the Company was in receipt of remuneration in excess of that drawn 

by the Managing Director or Whole-time Director. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  
Filtron Engineers Limited 
 
Sd/- 
Sadanand Ganapati Hegde 
Chairperson and Whole-time Director 
DIN: 00195106 
Place: Pune  
Date: September 08, 2025 

C/o:  Plot No.36, WMDC Industrial Area, Ambethan Road, Chakan, Pune – 410501,  
Maharashtra, India 

 



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS  
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 
To 
The Members 
Filtron Engineers Limited 
Add: Plot No.36, WMDC Industrial Area, Ambethan Road,  
Chakan, Pune - 410501, Maharashtra, India 
 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from 
the Directors of Filtron Engineers Limited (CIN L57909PN1982PLC026929) and having 
registered office at Plot No.36, WMDC Industrial Area, Ambethan Road Chakan, Pune - 
410501, Maharashtra, India, (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me 
by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) 
read with Schedule V Para-C Sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers, I hereby certify 
that majority of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial 
Year ending on March 31, 2025 have not been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), or any such other Statutory Authority. 
 
Details of Directors during the period April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025: 
 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN 
Date of 

Appointment 
Date of 

Cessation 

1 Sadanand Ganapati Hegde 00195106 16-04-1982 - 

2 Deepa Atul Thakkar 01935356   26-12-2020 17-02-2025 

3 Atul Thakkar 01935338 26-12-2020 17-02-2025 

4 Tanaji Gunaji Kadu 08425482 11-11-2022  

5 Gajanan Chidambar Hedge 00195154 11-11-2022  

6 *Nivedita Sen 07796043 13-11-2023 - 
*Nivedita Sen (DIN: 07796043), Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company has tendered her 
resignation w.e.f. July 16, 2025  

 
  



 

 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 
 
For Pooja Gala & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretary 
 
Sd/- 
Pooja Amit Gala 
Proprietor 
ACS: 69393/ COP: 25845 
Peer Reviewed Unit No: - 5760/2024 
ICSI UDIN: A069393G001197951  
Place: Thane 
Date: September 08, 2025  
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Peth,  
Office: 020-29527158            Behind Grahak Peth, Off Tilak Road, Pune 411030  
 
               2012/16/17, Sadashiv Peth, “Ashwini Heights” 
               “B” Wing, 2 nd Floor, Off Tilak Road, Next to 
                Grahak Peth, Pune 411 030. 
Mobile: 98230-91364    shekhar@cashekharsane.com  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the MEMBERS OF FILTRON ENGINEERS LIMITED 
 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Opinion 

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Filtron Engineers Limited (“the entity”), which comprise the 

balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the statement of Profit and Loss, and statement of cash flows for the year 

then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements of the entity. because of the significance 

of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have been able to obtain 

sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements. 

Basis for Opinion 

During the year the company has commenced its business activities.  

The Company has maintained Fixed Assets register and has carried out physical verification of fixed assets. 

The balances in all current assets and current liabilities including statutory liabilities are subject to confirmation, 
reconciliation. 

We have relied upon the representation given by the management that, inventory of Rs. 2,211.35 thousand will be 
having realizable value in the ordinary course of business. 

We have relied upon representation from the management regarding (a) non granting of any loans to any parties 
as mentioned in Section 189 of the companies Act, 2013 (b) making investments or guarantees as per Section 185 
or Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 [c] Non acceptance of deposits from the public as per Section 73 to 76 
of the Companies Act, 2013 

The Company has filed income tax returns based on Un-audited figures for certain previous financial year and as a 
result we are not able to comment on any liability if any and to the extent relevant under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
and its consequential implications. 

We have relied upon the representation given by the management in respect of related party transactions. 

The Company has generally complied with the provisions under the Companies Act, 2013, Securities Exchange 
Board of India. 
 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 

view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in 

accordance with6 the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards 

specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 

policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement 

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

mailto:shekhar@cashekharsane.com
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  
 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements.  
 

We are independent of the entity in accordance with the ethical requirements in accordance with the 

requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI and the ethical requirements as prescribed under the laws and 

regulations applicable to the entity. 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 

Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.  

 
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books and the Company does not have any branches and hence 
returns were not verified.  

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on 31 March, 
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the statutory auditors 
of its subsidiary company, incorporated in India, none of the directors of the company, is disqualified as on 
31 March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.  

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:  
i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 

statements. 
ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses. 
iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
iv) With respect to clause (e) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 

amended 
A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have 

been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities ("intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 



("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

B) Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding 
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide 
Any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e) as provided under (a) and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement 

v) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year 
vi) Proviso to rule 3(1) of the companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using 

accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility 
vii) Is applicable to the company w.e.f April 1, 2023 and accordingly, the Company has maintained it 

throughout the year. 
 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government 
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements 
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, no remuneration has been paid by 

the Company to its directors during the year. 

i. According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed amounts payable in respect of 

statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the 

date they became payable and breakup of the same is as below: - 

Sr. 

No. 
Particulars 

Amount 

(Rs.’000) 

1 Tax Deducted at Source under the Income tax Act, 1961 Nil 

2 Central Sales Tax Nil 

3 Goods & Service Tax Law Nil 

4 Maharashtra Value Added Tax, 2002 Nil 

 Total     Nil 

 

ii. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Securities & Exchange Board of India, 

Companies Act, 1961 and Tax Deducted at source under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

iii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for 

material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts.  The Company did not have any long -term 

contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.  

iv. The Company is of the opinion that, no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company 

For S.H. SANE & CO. 
Chartered Accountants  
(Firm’s Registration No.0114491W) 
 
Sd/- 
Shekhar Sane 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 047938 
UDIN: 25047938BMKQGL3313 
Date: May 29, 2025 
Place: Pune 

 

 



ANNEXURE “A” TOTHEINDEPENDENTAUDITOR’SREPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date) 

(i)  

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment. 

b. The Company does have a program of verification of property, plant and equipment to cover 
all the its Ems which, in our opinion, is reason able having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets.  

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties except MIDC, Chakan 
lease hold plot no. 36 which is under process for substituting the name as Limited instead of 
Private Ltd. Company, are held in the name of the Company. 

(ii)  

a. As informed to us, the physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the management at 
the end of year and the discrepancies noticed during such physical verification were not material. 
The Company does not have any inventory lying with third parties. Appropriate provision has been 
made in the books of account writing down inventories. 

(iii) As represented by the Company, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or 
unsecured, to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the 
register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
given loans, made investments or given guarantees which are covered by the provisions of 
Section185 and 186 of the Act. 

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from the public under Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act and the rules framed there under. 

(vi) The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under Sub-Section (1) of 
Section 148 of the Act and we are of the opinion that prima facie such accounts and records are 
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a 
view to deter mine whether they are accurate or complete. 

(vii)  

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of 
undisputed statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with 
appropriate authorities. Except TDS under Income Tax.   

According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed amounts payable in respect 

of statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March, 2025 for a period of more than six months from 

the date they became payable and breakup of the same is as below: - 

Sr. 

No 
Particulars 

Amount 

(Rs. In ‘000) 

1 Central Sales Tax Nil 

2 Goods & Service Tax Law Nil 

3 Tax Deducted at Source under the Income tax Act, 1961 Nil 

4 Maharashtra Value Added Tax, 2002 Nil 

 Total Nil 

b. Details of dues of Income-tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, and Value Added Tax which 
have not been deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes are given below: 

Sl. No. Name of the Statue Particulars 
Amount 

(Rs.) 
Period to which amount relates Forum where dispute is pending 

Nil 

 
  



(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks and government 
and dues to others.   

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans taken 
by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised in the year when 
they are taken. The Company had not raised money by way of further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. 

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the 
Company by its officers or employees has been notice do reported during the year. 

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,2013. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph3(xii)of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in 
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all 
transaction with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.  
However, we are not able to ascertain whether such transactions are area at Arm’s length or not. 

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xiv) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected 
with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-I of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934.  

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 
conducted we are of opinion that the company has incurred cash losses in the financial year 
and the immediately preceding financial year; 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable; 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report indicating that company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company 
as and when they fall due. 

(xx) The provisions of Section 135 towards corporate social responsibility are not applicable to the 
company. 

(xxi) The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial 
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said 
clause under this report. 

For S.H. SANE & CO. 
Chartered Accountants  
(Firm’s Registration No.0114491W)’ 
Sd/- 
Shekhar Sane 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 047938 
UDIN: 25047938BMKQGL3313 
Date: May 29, 2025 
Place: Pune  



Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section3 of Section 

143 of the CompaniesAct,2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Filtron Engineers Limited. (“the 

Company”) as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the 

Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and 

the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained although is sufficient to the extent relevant and made 

available subject to that, the Company is not a Going Concern and there were significant limitations with 

respect to compliance of Internal Financial Controls for want of sufficient knowledge on the part of 

management, resources and infrastructure to implement the same and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reason able 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

Company’sinternalfinancialcontroloverfinancialreportingincludesthosepoliciesandproceduresthat(1)pertaintoth

emaintenanceof records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 

authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that 

could have a material  effect on the financial statements. 

  



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion rim proper management override of controls, material mis statements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls. 
 
Over financial reporting to future periods is subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For S.H. SANE & CO. 
Chartered Accountants  
(Firm’s Registration No.0114491W)’ 
 
Sd/- 
Shekhar Sane 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 047938 
UDIN: 25047938BMKQGL3313 
Date: May 29, 2025 
Place: Pune 



Filtron Engineers Limited
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025 Amount in Rs. Thousand

As at As at
Notes 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 7,645.86                   8,931.30                             
Capital work-in-progress 521.04                       -                                       
Financial assets

i.   Other non-current financial assets 6.1 -                             -                                       
Other non-current assets 7.1 -                             -                                       
Total non-current assets 8,166.90                   8,931.30                             

Current assets
Inventories 2,211.35                   2,211.35                             
Financial assets

i.   Trade receivables 8 -                             -                                       
ii.   Cash and cash equivalents 9 41.05                         40.65                                   
iii.   Other current financial assets 6.2 111.29                       111.29                                 

Current tax assets -                             -                                       
Other current assets 7.2 1,077.04                   672.48                                 

3,440.73                   3,035.77                             
Assets classified as held for sale -                             -                                       
Total current assets 3,440.73                   3,035.77                             
Total assets 11,607.63                 11,967.07                           

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 4.1 26,165.00                 26,165.00                           
Other equity 4.2 (66,568.48)                (63,572.78)                          

(40,403.48)                (37,407.78)                          

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i.   Borrowings 10.1 19,932.00                 19,932.00                           
Total non-current liabilities 19,932.00                 19,932.00                           

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i.   Borrowings 10.2 18,911.29                 12,778.31                           
ii.   Trade payables 11 8,159.62                   10,293.17                           
iii.   Other current financial liabilities 12 1,460.62                   2,559.58                             

Current tax liabilities 470.00                       719.99                                 
Other current liabilities 13 3,077.58                   3,091.80                             

32,079.11                 29,442.85                           

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale
Total current liabilities 32,079.11                 29,442.85                           
Total liabilities 52,011.11                 49,374.85                           
Total equity and liabilities 11,607.63                 11,967.07                           

Summary of Material accounting policy information 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the  financial statements As per our report of even date

For S.H.SANE & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Filtron Engineers Limited
(Firm’s Registration No.0114491W)

Sd/- Sd/-
S. G. Hegde      G Hegde

           Sd/- Chairman & whole time   Director
Shekhar Sane Director
Proprietor DIN No.00195106 DIN No: 00195154
M.No. 047938 Date : 29-05-2025 Date : 29-05-2025
Date : 29-05-2025 Place: Pune Place: Pune
Place: Pune

       Sd/-       Sd/-
Ramesh Hosmane Soniya Ajmera
CFO Company Secretary
Date : 29-05-2025 Mem No-A49879
Place: Pune Date : 29-05-2025

Place: Pune



Filtron Engineers Limited

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
Amount in Rs. Thousand

For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Revenue from operations 14 2,500.00                           -                                      
Other income 15 2,265.08                           1,331.68                             
Total income (A) 4,765.08                           1,331.68                            

Expenses
Purchase 16 -                                     -                                      
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and 
finished goods 17 -                                     -                                      
Employee benefit expense 18 106.45                              153.00                                
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5.3 1,285.43                           1,285.43                             
Other expenses 19 6,368.90                           3,372.17                             
Finance costs
Total expenses (B) 7,760.78                           4,810.60                            

Profit before tax (A-B) (2,995.70)                          (3,478.92)                           
Tax expense (refer note 30)

Current tax -                                     -                                      

MAT Credit entitlement -                                     -                                      
Tax charge/(credit) in respect of earlier years -                                     -                                      
Deferred tax charge / (credit) -                                     -                                      

Total tax expense -                                    -                                      

Net profit for the year (C) (2,995.70)                          (3,478.92)                           

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss (D)
Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations -                                     -                                      
Tax effect on remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities 
/ (asset) -                                     -                                      

-                                     -                                      

Total other comprehensive income for the period / year (D) + 
(E) -                                     -                                      
Total comprehensive income for the year (C) + (D) (2,995.70)                          (3,478.92)                           

Earnings per equity share 20
Basic (In ₹) (1.14)                                 (1.33)                                   
Diluted (In ₹) (1.14)                                 (1.33)                                   

Summary of Material accounting policy information 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the  financial statements

As per our report of even date
For S.H.SANE & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Filtron Engineers Limited
(Firm’s Registration No.0114491W)

              Sd/-              Sd/-
S. G. Hegde      G Hegde

           Sd/- Chairman & whole time   Director
Shekhar Sane Director -                                  
Partner DIN No.00195106 DIN No: 00195154
M.No. 047938 Date : 29-05-2025 Date : 29-05-2025
Date : 29-05-2025 Place: Pune Place: Pune
Place: Pune

                    Sd/-                  Sd/-
    Ramesh Hosmane Soniya Ajmera
   CFO Company Secretary
   Date : 29-05-2025 Mem No-A49879
    Place: Pune Date : 29-05-2025

Place: Pune



Filtron Engineers Limited

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
Amount in Rs. Thousand

For the year ended For the year ended
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Profit before tax (2,995.70)                    (3,478.92)                    
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,285.43                      1,285.43                      
Impairment loss
Interest income
Profit on sale of assets -                                -                                
Dividend income
Finance income on lease deposits
Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations
Balance written back (2,265.08)                    (31.68)                          
Provision for doubtful receivables -                                (1,300.00)                    
Bad debts
Balances written off

Operating profit before working capital changes (3,975.35)                    (3,525.17)                    
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables -                                -                                
(Increase) in inventories -                                -                                
Increase in trade payables (2,133.55)                    948.68                         
(Increase) in other financial assets 
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets 
(Increase)/decrease in Loans
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (404.56)                        (210.52)                        
Increase/(decrease) in provisions -                                -                                
Increase in employee benefit obligations 
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 901.91                         9.68                              
Increase in other financial liabilities

Cash generated from operations (5,611.55)                    (2,777.33)                    
Taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash flows by operating activities (5,611.55)                    (2,777.33)                    
Cash flows from investing activities 

Payments for property, plant and equipment (521.03)                        0.01                               
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment -                                -                                
Interest received 

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities (521.03)                        0.01                              
Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from borrowings 6,132.98                      2,775.80                      
Repayment of borrowings 
Interest paid 

Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities 6,132.98                      2,775.80                      
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 0.40                              (1.52)                            
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 40.65                           42.17                           
Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency cash and cash 
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 41.05                           40.65                           

Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Balance with banks
- in current accounts 6.76                              6.36                              
Cash on hand 34.29                           34.29                           
Total cash and cash equivalents 41.05                           40.65                           

Summary of Material accounting policy information - Refer note 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the  financial statements

As per our report of even date
For S.H.SANE & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Filtron Engineers Limited
(Firm’s Registration No.0114491W)

         Sd/- Sd/-
S. G. Hegde G Hegde
Chairman & whole time Director

           Sd/- Director
Proprietor DIN No.00195106 DIN No: 00195154
M.No. 047938 Date : 29th May 2025 Date : 29th May 2025
Date : 29th May 2025 Place: Pune Place: Pune
Place: Pune

                          Sd/-               Sd/-
            Ramesh Hosmane Soniya Ajmera
            CFO Company Secretary
           Date : 29-05-2025 Mem No-A49879
           Place: Pune Date : 29-05-2025

Place: Pune



FILTRON ENGINEERS LIMITED 
 
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
 

1. Nature of Operations: 

Filtron Engineers Limited (CIN: L57909PN1982PLCO26929) is engaged in manufacturing and supply of Food, Dairy, 

Beverages and Chemical equipments and related services. The Company operates through its facilities at Pune, Chakan.  

 

2. Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention 

except for certain financial instruments which have been measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the 

fair value of consideration given in exchange of goods and services. The accounting policies are consistently applied by the 

Company during the period and are consistent with those used in previous year except where a newly issued accounting 

standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy 

hitherto in use. 

 

Going Concern: 

 During the year the Company has commenced its activities and is regarded as a going concern. Hence the financials are   

prepared on going concern basis. 

 

Material accounting policy information: 

 

a. Statement of compliance 

These separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended thereafter. 

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company prepared its financial statements in 

accordance with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with 

paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).  

 

b. Use of estimates and judgement  

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind 

AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, 

judgements and assumptions affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent 

liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. 

These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  

 

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods 

are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and 

actions, uncertainty about these estimates, judgements and assumptions may result in the outcome that may require 

material adjustment in the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in future period. 

 

Estimations which may cause material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within next 

financial year is in respect of useful lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets, 

provisions and contingent liabilities and fair value measurement of financial instruments have been discussed below. 

 

c. Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The cost 

comprises the purchase price and any attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended 

use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.  

 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is 

classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not ready to use before such date 

are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. 

 

Subsequent expenditure related to property; plant and equipment is capitalized only if it is probable that future 

economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 

reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs of an items of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement 

of profit and loss when incurred.  

 



FILTRON ENGINEERS LIMITED 
 
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
 

Gains or losses arising from of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net proceeds and carrying 

amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

 

d. Intangible Assets 

 

Intangible assets including software licenses of enduring nature and acquired contractual rights separately are 

measured on initial recognition, at cost. Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 

impairment losses, if any.  

 

Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its 

intended use. Cost of internally generated intangible assets comprises all directly attributable costs necessary to 

create, produce, and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when 

the asset is derecognized.  

 

Capitalized development cost is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.  

Intangibles under development include cost of intangibles that are not ready to be put to use. 

 

e. Depreciation and amortisation  

 

Depreciation has been provided on Written Down Value method on all assets as per Useful lives prescribed under 

Schedule II of Companies Act 2013. Depreciation on assets added during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis 

from the date on which put to use. Depreciation on deductions during the year is provided on pro-rata basis up to the 

date of sale. Technical know-how included in property, plant and equipment is amortized over a period of 10 years.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

f. Financial instruments 

 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity.  

(i) Financial assets 

 

(a) Initial recognition and measurement 

 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 

through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

 

(b) Subsequent measurement  

 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories: 

 

• Financial assets at amortized cost 

• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

 

Name of Asset  Useful lives  

Plant and Machine  15 Years  

Tools 15 Years 

Office Equipment  3 Years  

Furniture and Fixtures  10 Years  

Building 30 Years 

Leasehold land 99 years 

Vehicle  8 Years 



FILTRON ENGINEERS LIMITED 
 
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
 

(c) Financial assets at amortized cost: 

 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both following conditions are met: 

 

• The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 

contractual cash flows, and  

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 

interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in other income in 

the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and 

loss. 

 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income  

 

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following criteria are 

met:  

 

• The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 

flows and selling the financial assets, and  

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

After initial measurement, such financial assets, until they are derecognized or reclassified, are subsequently 

measured at fair value and recognized in other comprehensive income except for interest income, gain/loss on 

impairment, gain/loss on foreign exchange which is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

(d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

 

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value 

through other comprehensive income. 

 

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or fair value 

through other comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is 

allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting 

mismatch’).  

 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value in the statement of profit and 

loss. 

 

(e) De-recognition of financial assets  

 

A financial asset is de-recognized when: 

 

• The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or  

• The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through 

arrangement and either   

(a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or  

(b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 

transferred control of the asset. 

 

  



FILTRON ENGINEERS LIMITED 
 
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
 

g. Impairment  

 

(i) Financial assets (other than at fair value) 

 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind 

AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company has used practical 

expedients in calculating expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix.  The provision matrix 

takes into account historical credit loss experience for trade receivables to estimate the 12-month expected credit 

losses. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and allowance rates 

used in the provision matrix. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 

the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on 

the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. 

 

(ii) Non-financial assets 

 

Tangible and intangible assets 

 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is 

any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 

amount for the individual asset is estimated by the Company. If, however, it is not possible to estimate the 

recoverable amount of the individual asset then the Company determines the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs (the asset’s cash-generating unit). An impairment loss is recognised 

in the statement of profit and loss when the recoverable amount of the asset or CGU is less than the carrying amount 

of the asset or CGU. 

 

Previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 

the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If this is the case then the carrying 

amount of asset is increased to its recoverable amount. Such reversal is recognized in statement of profit and loss. 

 

h. Revenue recognition  

 

The Company mainly derives its revenues from manufacturing of dairy, Brewery and other equipment. The Company 

also earns revenues from sale of scrap. 

 

Revenue is recognised upon satisfying the performance obligation by transferring promised goods or services to 

customers for a consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services.  

 

Revenue from sale of scrap is recognised when the goods are transferred to the customer and the customer obtains 

the control over that asset. 

 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price being the consideration received from the customer, adjusted 

for volume discounts, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with 

the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. 

 

Unbilled revenue represents excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Unbilled revenue is recognised when 

there is unconditional right to receive cash and there is no uncertainty of ultimate collection   

Unearned or deferred revenue is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenue. 

 

i. Interest Income 

Interest on bank deposits is recognised on accrual basis. 

 

j. Dividends 

Dividends are recognized in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established. 

 

  



FILTRON ENGINEERS LIMITED 
 
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
 

k. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an 

original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short-term deposits, as 

defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts and cash credit facilities as they are considered an integral part of 

the Company’s cash management. 

 

l. Investment in subsidiaries 

 

Investment in subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment loss, if any. 

 

m. Employee benefits 

 

(i) Gratuity 

 

The Company provides for Gratuity, a defined benefit obligation plan, covering eligible employees under Company 

Gratuity Scheme. At each reporting date, liabilities with respect to gratuity plan are determined by actuarial valuation 

performed by independent actuary. The Company uses the projected unit credit method to determine the present 

value of its defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and, where applicable, past service cost. 

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its Balance Sheet as an asset or liability. 

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/ asset is recognised in other comprehensive income and are not 

reclassified to profit or loss in a subsequent period. 

 

(ii) Provident fund 

 

Contribution to provident fund is a defined contribution plan covering eligible employees. The Company and the 

eligible employees make a monthly contribution to the provident fund maintained by the Regional Provident Fund 

Commissioner equal to the specified percentage of the basic salary of the eligible employees as the scheme. The 

contributions to the provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year, when the 

contributions are due. The company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. 

 

(iii) Short-term Employee Benefits 

 

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term benefits. 

Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay 

etc. and are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. A liability is recognised for 

the amount expected to be paid when there is a present obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service 

provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

 

(iv) Compensated absences 

 

The Company provides accumulating and non-accumulating paid absences such as annual leave, sick leave and casual 

leave.  Accumulating paid absences are partly vesting and non-vesting. The Company recognises the expected cost of 

accumulating paid absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused 

entitlement. Non-accumulating paid absences do not carry forward and are lapsed if the current period’s entitlement 

is not used in full and do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused entitlement on leaving the Company. 

The Company does not recognises any liability or expense until the time of the absence.   

 

Compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the 

employee renders the related services are recognised as undiscounted liability at the balance sheet date. 

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which 

the employee renders the related services are recognised as an actuarially determined liability at the present value of 

the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. 

 

n. Borrowing costs 
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Borrowing costs are capitalized that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 

qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in 

which it is incurred. 

 

o. Operating Lease 

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the 

lessor, are recognised as operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognised on a straight line basis over the 

lease term in the statement of profit and loss, unless the lease agreement explicitly states that increase is on account 

of inflation. 

 

p. Foreign currency translation 

(i) Functional and presentation currency 

 Items included in the separate financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the entity operates (`the functional currency'). The separate financial statements are 

presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. 

 

(ii) Initial Recognition  

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Indian currency, by applying the exchange rate between the Indian 

currency and the foreign currency as at the date of transaction. 

 

(iii) Conversion   

Monetary items, designated in foreign currencies are revalued at the rate prevailing on the date of Balance Sheet. 

 

(iv) Exchange Differences  

Exchange differences arising on the settlement and conversion of foreign currency transactions are recognized as 

income or as expenses in the year in which they arise, except in cases where they relate to the acquisition of 

qualifying assets, in which cases they were adjusted in the cost of the corresponding asset. 

 

q. Taxes  

 

(i) Current tax  

 

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in accordance with 

the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961.  

 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented on the net basis in the balance sheet after off-setting 

current tax paid against income tax provision only if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the 

recognised amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis. 

 

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a period / year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. 

MAT credit available is recognized as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company 

will pay normal income tax during the period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In 

the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on 

Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset 

is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company 

reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the 

Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. 

 

(ii) Deferred Tax  

 

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except: 
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 When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss 

 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and 

interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled 

and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits 

and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 

be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and 

unused tax losses can be utilized, except: 

 

 When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial 

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the 

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss 

 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and 

interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the 

temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against 

which the temporary differences can be utilized.  

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for the carryforward of unused tax losses only if it is probable that future 

taxable profits will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 

longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 

utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent 

that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.  

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 

is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted 

at the reporting date. 

 

Current and deferred taxes are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to 

items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.  

 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 

assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 

authority. 

 

 

r. Provisions and contingent liabilities  

 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event 

and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the 

amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the 

obligation at the Balance Sheet date. Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect 

current best estimates. 

 

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle 

the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a 

pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 

The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.  

 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a 

present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 

settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be 
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recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but 

discloses its existence in the financial statements. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a 

possible obligation arising out of past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present 

obligation arising out of a past event where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 

settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

 

s. Earnings per share 

 

a. Basic Earnings per Share 

 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by 

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. Earnings considered in 

ascertaining the company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period after deducting any attributable tax 

thereto for the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all 

periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares 

that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.   

 
b. Diluted Earnings per Share 

 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of 

all dilutive potential equity shares.  
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Equity
4.1 Equity share capital

Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

                35,000.00                 35,000.00 

                26,165.00                 26,165.00 

26,165.00                26,165.00                

Number of shares Amount Rs. Number of shares Amount Rs.
26,16,500                26,165.00                26,16,500                26,165.00                

26,16,500                26,165.00                26,16,500                26,165.00                

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

% No. of shares % No. of shares
Mr. Sadanand Hedge 44.14% 11,54,980                44.14% 11,54,980                
S.G. Hedge (HUF) 5.45% 1,42,500                  5.45% 1,42,500                  

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

Shareholding of Promoters
Sr. No. Promoter Name No. of shares held % of total shares % change during 

the year

1 Mr. Sadanand Hedge                   11,54,980 44.14% -                            
2 S.G. Hedge (HUF)                     1,42,500 5.45% -                            

Authorised
  35,00,000 Equity shares, Rs. 10/- par value

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
2,616,500 (Previous year 2,616,500) equity shares of Rs. 
10 each fully paid-up

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

Name of the Party As at March 31, 2024

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

As at March 31, 2025

Number of shares at the beginning of the year
Add: Shares issued
Number of shares at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2024

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote 
per share

As at March 31, 2025

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is set 
out below:

Particulars
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

4.2 Other equity Amount in Rs. Thousand

Notes Security 
premium

Retained earnings General 
reserve

Share forfeiture Total

Balance at 1 April 2024             9,037.55               (74,650.69)             58.86              1,981.50 (63,572.78)       
Balance as at March 31, 2025                 (2,995.70) (2,995.70)         
Profit for the year -                    
Balance as at March 31, 2025 9,037.55           (77,646.39)              58.86           1,981.50            (66,568.48)       

Balance at 1 April 2023             9,037.55               (71,171.77)             58.86              1,981.50 (60,093.86)       
Profit for the year                 (3,478.92) (3,478.92)         
Other Comprehensive income -                    
Balance as at March 31, 2024 9,037.55           (74,650.69)              58.86           1,981.50            (63,572.78)       

Summary of Material accounting policy information - Refer note 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the  financial statements As per our report of even date

For S.H.SANE & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Filtron Engineers Limited
(Firm’s Registration No.0114491W)

           Sd/-           Sd/-
S. G. Hegde G Hegde

           Sd/- Chairman & whole time Director
Shekhar Sane Director
Proprietor DIN No.00195106 DIN No: 00195154
M.No. 047938 Date : 29th May 2025 Date : 
Date : 29-05-2025 Place: Pune Place: Pune
Place: Pune

           Sd/-          Sd/-
Ramesh Hosmane Soniya Ajmera
CFO Company Secretary
Date : 29-05-2025 Mem No-A49879
Place: Pune Date : 29-05-2025

Place: Pune

Reserves and surplus Other reserves
Attributable to the owners of Filtron Engineers Limited
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5 Property, plant and equipment Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars Land - 

Freehold
Land - 
leasehold

Buildings - 
Freehold*

 Office 
equipment 

 Plant and 
Equipment 

 Tools  Furniture and 
fixtures 

 Total 

Gross block (At cost)
As at April 1, 2023       919.82             477.00       23,706.67      1,966.23       16,497.27      70.11               599.62 44,236.72           
Additions -                       
Disposals -                       
Adjustments                 (0.01) (0.01)                    
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 919.82     477.00           23,706.67      1,966.23    16,497.27      70.11    599.62             44,236.71           

Depreciation and impairment -                       
As at April 1, 2023                -               148.52        14,810.88      1,966.23        16,447.27      47.46               599.62 34,019.98           
Charge for the period 5.11                1,270.83        -              4.96                4.53      1,285.43              
Disposals -                       
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2024                -               153.63       16,081.71      1,966.23       16,452.23      51.99               599.62             35,305.41 
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024       919.82             323.37          7,624.96                  -                 45.04      18.12                        -                 8,931.30 

Gross block (At cost)
As at April 1, 2022       919.82             477.00        23,706.67      1,966.23        16,800.37      70.11               599.62 44,539.82           
Additions -                       
Disposals           (303.10) (303.10)                
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 919.82     477.00           23,706.67      1,966.23    16,497.27      70.11    599.62             44,236.72           

Depreciation and impairment -                       
As at April 1, 2022                -               143.41        13,540.05      1,964.84        16,745.41      42.93               599.62 33,036.26           
Charge for the period 5.11                1,270.83        1.39            4.96                4.53      1,286.82              
Disposals           (303.10) (303.10)                
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2023                -               148.52       14,810.88      1,966.23       16,447.27      47.46               599.62             34,019.98 
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 919.82                 328.48          8,895.79                  -                 50.00      22.65                        -               10,216.74 
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6.1 Other non-current financial assets Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

(i) Others
Deposits -                         -                               
Total other non-current financial assets -                         -                               

6.2 Other current financial assets Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

(i) Others -                         -                               
Deposits 111.29                  111.29                        
Total other current financial assets 111.29                  111.29                        

7.1 Other non-current assets Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Prepaid expenses -                         -                               
Total other non-current assets -                         -                               

7.2 Other current assets Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Advances to suppliers -                         -                               
VAT/GST/Service tax recoverable 1,077.04               672.48                        
Total other current assets 1,077.04               672.48                        

8 Trade receivables Amount in Rs. Thousand
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Current
Secured - considered good -                         -                               
Unsecured - considered good -                         -                               
Unsecured - considered doubtful (2,305.09)              1,569.91                     

              (2,305.09)                      1,569.91 
Less: Allowance for credit losses (2,305.09)              1,569.91                     
Total trade receivables                             -                                     -   
Trade receivables (2,305.09)              1,569.91                     
Receivables from related parties -                         -                               
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (2,305.09)              1,569.91                     
Total receivables -                         -                               

Note:-
All the receivables are outstanding for more than 3 years against which 100% provision has been made.

9 Cash and cash equivalents Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Balance with banks -                         -                               

- in current accounts 6.76                       6.36                             
Cash on hand 34.29                     34.29                          
Total cash and cash equivalents 41.05                     40.65                          
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Financial liabilities
10.1 Non-current Borrowings Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Secured -                            -                            
Term loans -                            -                            

From banks* -                            -                            
From others 19,932.00                19,932.00                

Total non-current borrowings 19,932.00                19,932.00                

10.2 Current Borrowings Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Secured -                            -                            
Term loans payable on demand -                            -                            

From banks* -                            -                            
From others 18,911.29                12,778.31                

Total current borrowings 18,911.29                12,778.31                

Secured by all that piece and parcel admeasuring 4,400 Sq. metres situated at Plot No. 36, WMDC Industrial 
Estate, Ambethan Chakan Road, Chakan, Pune 410501 Maharashtra, India along with the industrial shed, 
existing electrical installation and machineries attached to the earth.
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11 Trade payables Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Current
Trade payables -                            -                            

-                            -                            
8,159.62                  10,293.17                

Total trade payables 8,159.62                  10,293.17                

Ageing of Trade payables as at 31-Mar-25 Amount in Rs. Thousand
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 year
1-2 

years
2-3 years

 More than 
3 years 

(i) MSME -                            
(ii) Others -                -                            -                            
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -                            
(iv)Disputed dues -Others -                            

-                        -                -                            -                            -                            

Ageing of Trade payables as at 31-Mar-24 Amount in Rs. Thousand
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 year
1-2 

years
2-3 years

 More than 
3 years 

(i) MSME -                            
(ii) Others 2,015.67              -                -                            4,100.04                  6,115.71                  
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -                            
(iv)Disputed dues -Others 4,177.46                  4,177.46                  

2,015.67              -                -                            8,277.50                  10,293.17                

12 Other current financial liabilities Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Accrued compensation to employees 1,460.62                  2,559.58                  
Total other current financial liabilities 1,460.62                  2,559.58                  

13 Other current liabilities Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Advance from customers 2,746.43                  2,781.43                  
Payroll taxes -                            -                            
Indirect taxes payable and other statutory liabilities 331.15                      310.37                      
Total other current liabilities 3,077.58                  3,091.80                  
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Particulars  Total 

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

Particulars  Total 
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14 Revenue from operations Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars

 31-Mar-25  31-Mar-24 
Sale of products -                          -                               
Sale from trading activity -                          -                               
Sale of services 2,500.00                -                               
Other operating revenue -                          -                               

-                          -                               
Total revenue from operations 2,500.00                -                               

15 Other income Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Profit on sale of asset -                          -                               
Balance written back 2,265.08                31.68                           
Provision for doubtful debts written back -                          1,300.00                     
Total other income 2,265.08                1,331.68                     

16 Purchase Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Purchase -                          -                               
Total purchase -                          -                               

17 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Opening Stock:

Raw material 666.44                    666.44                         

Work-in-progress 1,544.91                1,544.91                     

Finished goods -                          -                               
2,211.35                2,211.35                     

Closing Stock:

Raw material 666.44                    666.44                         

Work-in-progress 1,544.91                1,544.91                     

Finished goods -                          -                               
2,211.35                2,211.35                     

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories -                          -                               

18 Employee benefit expense Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Salaries, wages and bonus 106.45                    153.00                         
Contribution to provident and other funds -                          -                               
Staff welfare expenses -                          -                               
Total employee benefit expense 106.45                    153.00                         
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19 Other expenses Amount in Rs. Thousand
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Payment to statutory auditors (refer note 24) 100.00          100.00         
Bank charges 1.21               2.04              
Electricity expenses 13.36             -                
Travel and conveyance expenses 62.92             42.55           
Housekeeping charges -                 30.00           
Legal and Professional fees 2,125.70       617.54         
Labour charges -                 -                
Office expenses 30.27             31.66           
Printing and stationery 13.63             19.56           
Postage and telephone expenses 0.59               1.09              
Sales promotion and advertisement expenses 95.30             43.90           
Balances written off -                 -                
License fees 3.00               15.00           
Repairs & maintenance : -                 -                
  Computers 6.61               11.26           
  Machinery -                 37.55           
  Building -                 457.05         
  Vehicles 26.84             4.52              
  Others 110.88          66.00           
Security charges -                 -                
Rent,rates & taxes 3,646.77       79.73           
Miscellaneous expenses 131.82          33.49           
Penalty for late filing -                 1,703.79      
VAT/GST written off -                 75.44           

6,368.90       3,372.17      
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20 Earnings per equity share
Amount in Rs. Thousand unless otherwise stated

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Numerator for Basic and Diluted EPS  
Net Profit after tax (Amount in Rs.) (A) (2,995.70)                    (3,478.92)                    

Denominator for Basic EPS  
Weighted average number of equity shares (B) 26,16,500                   26,16,500                   

Denominator for Diluted EPS  
Number of equity shares (C) 26,16,500                   26,16,500                   

Basic Earnings per share of face value of ₹ 10 each (In ₹ ) (A/B) (1.14)                           (1.33)                           
(After exceptional items)
Diluted Earnings per share of face value of ₹ 10 each (In ₹ ) (A/C) (1.14)                           (1.33)                           

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Number of shares considered as basic weighted average shares outstanding 26,16,500                   26,16,500                   
Add: Effect of dilutive issues of stock options -                               
Number of shares considered as weighted average shares and potential shares 
outstanding

26,16,500                   26,16,500                   
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21. Going Concern: 

During the year the Company has commenced its activities. The company has recognized the impairment loss on Property, 

Plant and Equipment wherever required. 

 

22. Employee benefit plans 

The Company doesn’t have any employees hence gratuity liability is not provided during the year.   

 

23. Related Party Transactions: 

(i) Names of related parties and nature of related party relationship 

Key management personnel 

 Mr. Sadanand Hegde (Director) 
 Mr. Gajanan Hegde (Director) 
 Mr. Tanaji Kadu (Director) 
 Miss. Nivedita Sen (Director) 
 Ms. Raina Ajmera (Company Secretary) – Till April 25, 2024 
 Ms. Soniya Ajmera (Company Secretary) – From October 22, 2024 
 Mr. Ramesh Hosmane (CFO) 

Company in which the Directors or their relatives are interested 
  Real Centrifuges (Asia) Pvt. Ltd. 
  Schmidt Bretten (I) Pvt Ltd 

 

(ii) Related party transactions 

Amount in Rs. Thousand 

Nature of Transaction Name of the Related Party 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 

Reimbursement of expenses 
Atul Thakkar - - 
Sadanand Hedge 442.98 5,284.58 

 Total 442.98 5,425.04 

Salary to Company Secretary Raina Ajmera 0.00 204.00 

 Soniya Ajmera 106.45 0.00  

 Total 106.45 204.00 

  

 

(ii) Balance with related parties 

Nature of Transaction Name of the Related Party 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 

Trade payables Mr. Sadanand Hegde 720.00 720.00 

Mr. Venkat Giri   626.00 1,252.00 

Schmidt Bretten (I) Pvt Ltd 722.06 722.06 

Real Centrifuges (Asia) Pvt. Ltd - - 

Total 2068.06 2,694.06 

Loan taken (liability) Real Centrifuges (Asia) Pvt. Ltd 19,932.00 19,932.00 

Atul Thakkar - - 

Sadanand Hedge 13261.29 12,778.31 

Total 33193.29 32,710.31 

Advance for expenses Real Centrifuges (Asia) Pvt. Ltd 32.90 45.10 

Total 32.90 45.10 

Salary payable Sadanand Hegde 339.14 339.14 

Total 339.14 339.14 

Advance for expenses Atul Thakkar - - 

 Total - - 
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24. Auditors remuneration  

Amount in Rs. Thousand 

Particulars 
For the year 

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 

Services as statutory auditors 100.00 100.00 

 
100.00 100.00 

 

25. Income taxes 

 
The income tax expense consists of the following:  

Amount in Rs. Thousand 

Particulars 
For the year 

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 

Current tax - - 
Current tax expense for current year - - 
MAT Credit entitlement - - 
Tax charge/(credit) in respect of earlier years - - 
Subtotal - - 

 
  

Deferred tax   
Deferred tax (benefit) / expense for current year - - 
Deferred tax (benefit) / expense pertaining to prior years - - 
Subtotal - - 
Total income tax expense recognised in current year - - 

 
The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate to income tax expense reported in 
statement of profit and loss is as follows: 

Amount in Rs. Thousand 

Particulars 

For the year 

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 

Profit before tax (2,995.70) (3,478.92) 
Indian statutory income tax rate 30.90% 30.90% 
Expected income tax expense (925.67) (1,074.99) 

 

  

The Company has carried forward loss and has not recognised the deferred tax asset as it is not probable that future 
taxable profits will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 
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26. Fair value measurements 

 

Financial instruments by category  

Particular  31-Mar-25  31-Mar-24 Fair value 
hierarchy  FVPL   OCI  Amortized 

cost 
 FVPL   OCI  Amortized 

cost 

Financial assets 
      

 

Trade receivables - - - - - - Level 3 

Cash and cash equivalents - - 41.05 - - 40.65  

Other balances with banks - - - - - -  

Loans - - - - - -  

Other non-current and current 
financial assets - - 111.29 - - 111.29 

 

Total financial assets - - 152.34 - - 151.94  

 
       

Financial liabilities        

Borrowings - - 38,843.29 - - 32,710.31  

Trade payables - - 8,159.62 - - 10,293.17  

Other financial liabilities - - 1,460.62 - - 2,559.58  

 
- - 48,463.53 - - 45,563.06  

 
Fair value hierarchy: 
The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either 
observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels: 

Level 1 — Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level2— Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level3—Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in 

part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market 

transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. 

27. Financial risk management  

 
The Company is exposed to various risks such as credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.   
 
i. Credit risk 
Credit risk arises due to customer’s failure to repay the debts according to the contractual terms and conditions. It consists 
of two elements viz. risk of default in payment and decrease in the creditworthiness of the customers.  Credit risk is 
controlled by analyzing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been 
granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. 

 
Ageing of trade receivables 

Amount in Rs. Thousand 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

Within 30 days - - 

30 to 60 days - - 

60 to 90 days - - 

90 to 120 days - - 

121 days and above 2,305.09 1,569.91 

Less: Expected credit loss  2,305.09 1,569.91 

Closing balance - - 

 
Movement in expected credit loss allowance 

Amount in Rs. Thousand 

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 
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2025 2024 

Opening balance 1,569.91 2,869.91 

Movement in expected credit loss allowance 1,300.00 (1,300.00) 

Closing balance 2,869.91 1,569.91 

 
The maximum exposure to the credit risk is as follows: 

Amount in Rs. Thousand 

Particulars As at March 31, 
2025 

As at March 31, 
2024 

Trade receivables - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 41.05 40.65 

Other balances with banks - - 

Loans - - 

Other current and non-current financial assets  111.29 111.29 

 
Since the Company is not engaged in Exports, it is not exposed to risk associated with other geographies.  
 
ii. Market risk  
The risk that the fair value of the financial instrument may fluctuate because of change in market conditions. Such changes 

in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market 

changes.  

 

The Company is unable to meet its short term and long term financial obligations as it casts serious doubts about the 

Going Concern assumption.  

 

iii. Liquidity risk  
 
The Company doesn’t have enough liquidity to meet its current financial liabilities as is evident from the table given below:   

Amount in Rs. Thousand 

Particulars 
As at  

31-Mar-25 
As at  

31-Mar-24 

Current financial assets 152.34 151.94 
Current financial liabilities (includes provisions and other current liabilities) 32,079.11 29,442.85 

 

28. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo: 

The earnings and outgo in foreign currency is Rs. Nil for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Rs. Nil for March 31, 2024). 

 

29. Contingent liability not provided for:  

a. Some of the Customers and a Vendor has filed suit against the Company. However, as per the perception of the 

Company, there is no liability. 

 

30. Deferred Tax asset: 

During the year the Company has commenced its activities however there is no convincing evidence which demonstrates 

the virtual certainty of the realization of such deferred tax asset. Hence the Company has not recognised the deferred tax 

asset. 

 

31. Key ratio 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 % change 
Reason for variance (If more than 

25%) 

1 Current Ratio  10.73% 10.31% 4.03%  

2 Debt-Equity Ratio  -96.14% -87.44%       9.94%  

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio  0.00% 0.00% 0.00%  

4 Return on Equity Ratio  7.70% 9.30% -17.21%  
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5 Inventory turnover ratio  NA NA NA  

6 
Trade Receivables turnover 
ratio  

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%  

7 Trade payables turnover ratio  70.18% 32.95% 112.98% 

Increase in professional fees and 
other overheads has resulted into 
increase in trade payables turnover 
ratio 

8 Net capital turnover ratio  0.00% 0.00% 0.00%  

9 Net profit ratio 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%  

10 Return on Capital employed 192.01% 74.06% 159.26% 
Decrease in Loss has resulted in 
higher return on capital employed 

11 Return on investment. - - 0.00%  

 

32. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006 

The Company does not have any system to identify the vendors who are registered under the MSMED Act, 2006. Hence, it 

was not possible to opine on the requirements under the MSMED Act.   

 

33. Inventories   

As per the perception of the management, closing stock is approximately of the value stated if realized in the ordinary 

course of business. The Company has carried out the physical verification of the closing stock as on 31 March 2025. 

 

34. Capital commitments:  

The capital commitment as at March 31, 2025was Rs. Nil (March 31, 2024 – Rs. Nil). 

 

35. Relationship with Struck off Companies 

The Company has not entered into any relationship with the struck-off Company during the financial year 2024-25. (March 

31, 2024 – Nil). 

 

36. Previous period’s / year’s figures have been regrouped where necessary to conform to current period’s classification.  

 

For S.H. SANE & CO. 
Chartered Accountants  
(Firm’s Registration No.0114491W) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
of Filtron Engineers Limited 

  

Sd/- 
Shekhar Sane 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 047938 
UDIN: 25047938BMKQGL3313 
Date: May 29, 2025 
Place: Pune 

Sd/- 
Mr. Sadanand Hegde  
Whole time Director 
DIN: 00195106 
Date: May 29, 2025 
Place: Pune  
 
Sd/- 
Ramesh Hosmane 
CFO 
Date: May 29, 2025 
Place: Pune  
 

 

Sd/- 
Mr. Gajanan Hegde  
Director 
DIN: 00195154 
Date: May 29, 2025 
Place: Pune 
  
Sd/- 
Soniya Ajmera 
Company Secretary 
Mem No: A49879 
Date: May 29, 2025 
Place: Pune 
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